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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SRF Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of SRF Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on
separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports
of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements of components audited by them, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Description of Key Audit Matter
Accounting for derivatives

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

An important element of Group’s fund-raising
strategy involves various types of borrowings,
including, foreign currency denominated
borrowings and a combination of fixed and
floating interest rates, and also foreign currency
denominated loans and advances to other parties.
The Group’s operating activities are also exposed
to significant foreign exchange risk (refer to note
40 of the consolidated financial statements).

The Group uses derivative financial instruments
to mitigate foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk primarily through foreign currency forward
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps.

Further, the Group has been using hedge
relationship designation as per criteria set out in
relevant Indian accounting standards.

Accounting thereof and related presentation
and disclosures of these transactions require
significant judgement.

Given the significant level of judgement and
estimation involved and the quantitative
significance, we have determined this to be a
key audit matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we
applied the following audit procedures in this area,
among others to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence:

— Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of controls over
the Group’s treasury and other related
functions which directly impact the relevant
account balances and transactions, including
hedge accounting.

—  For selected samples via statistical sampling,
obtained external confirmations from
counterparties of the year end positions as
well as agreed to original agreements.

— Performed sample tests of valuation and
accounting of these transactions. In doing
so we have involved valuation specialists to
assist us in carrying out aforesaid procedure,
as considered necessary.

— Assessed the adequacy of disclosures
in the financial statements in respect
of both non-derivative and derivative
financial instruments.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of
Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed and based on the work done/ audit
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’
Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board
of Directors are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in term of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors/Trustees of the companies/entity
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of each company/entity and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Management and Board
of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the respective Management and Board of Directors/
Trustees of the companies/entity included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability
of each company/entity to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors/
Trustees either intends to liquidate the Company/
Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors/Trustees of the
companies/entity included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of each
company/entity.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting in preparation
of consolidated financial statements and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the appropriateness of this assumption.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial information of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which
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we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled
“Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance
of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial information of eight
subsidiaries, whose financial information reflect
total assets (before consolidation adjustments)
of ¥ 4,120.82 Crores as at 31 March 2022, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments)
of ¥ 2,613.96 Crores and net cash inflows
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting
to ¥ 79.23 Crores for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports
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have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside
India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which
have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable
in their respective countries. The Holding
Company’s management has converted the
financial information of such subsidiaries
located outside India from accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries
to accounting principles generally accepted
in India. We have audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates
to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries
located outside India is based on the reports of
other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors and the financial statements
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143
(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,
based on our audit and on the consideration
of reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of such subsidiaries as
were audited by other auditors, as noted in
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the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law relating
to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In  our opinion, the aforesaid
consolidated  financial  statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written
representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as
on 31 March 2022 taken on record by
the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India and
the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B".
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B. With respect to the other matters to
be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of the subsidiaries, as
noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a)

b)

<)

d)

The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending
litigations as at 31 March 2022 on
the consolidated financial position
of the Group. Refer Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements, as
required under the applicable law or
Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses,
on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts. Refer Note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements
in respect of such items as it
relates to the Group.

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company during the year ended 31
March 2022. There are no amounts
which are required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

(i) The respective managements of
the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are incorporated in India
whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other
auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 47(f)(i)
to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds)
by the Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries to or in

Annual Report 2021-22 | 273



D
RF

We always find a better way

(if)

(iii)

any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with  the
understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Holding
Company or any of such
subsidiaries ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or

= provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective managements of
the Company and its subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated
in India whose financial
statements have been audited
under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries respectively,
that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the
note 47(f)(ii) to accounts, no
funds have been received by the
Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities
(“"Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

= provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures
that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2022 UDIN: 22090075AJTDSI3005

the circumstances performed by
us and that performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements
have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our or
other auditors’ notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (i)
of Rule 11(e) contain any
material mis-statement.

e) The dividend declared or paid during
the year by the Holding Company is in
compliance with Section 123 of the Act.
The subsidiary companies incorporated
in India have neither declared nor paid
any dividend during the year.

With respect to the matter to be included
in the Auditor’s Report under Section
197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us
and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of such subsidiary companies
incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies to its directors is
in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section
197(16) of the Act which are required to be
commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Kaushal Kishore
Partner
Membership No.: 090075
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An nexu I"e A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial

Statements

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Clause (xxi) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 reports of the
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Kaushal Kishore

Partner

Membership No.: 090075
UDIN: 22090075AJTDSI3005

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2022
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An n exu re B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial

statements of SRF Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with
reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under'Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of SRF Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)
and such companies incorporated in India under
the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary
companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in India which are its
subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2022, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by such companies considering
the essential components of such internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the
Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on the criteria
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established by the respective Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were established
and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
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and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls
with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
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of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
controls with Reference to consolidated
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to two subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporated in India.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Kaushal Kishore

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 090075
Date: 27 May 2022 UDIN: 22090075AJTDSI3005
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Consolidated Balance Sheet (conTD.)

as at March 31, 2022 as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated) (All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note No. As at As at Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS Current liabilities
Non-current assets Financial liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 4 8,050.54 7,497.21 (i) Borrowings 18 1,786.05 1,425.95
Right-of-use assets 43 255.35 216.76 (ii) Lease liabilities 43 20.66 13.80
Capital work-in-progress 4.1 1,671.63 772.26 (iii) Trade payables 20
Goodwill 5 - 0.62 a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 55.98 33.37
Other intangible assets 6 119.40 112.37 and small enterprises
Financial assets b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 2,040.37 1,551.82
(i) Investments 7 4.16 4.16 micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Loans 8 14.72 10.55 (iv)Other financial liabilities 21 371.70 432.29
(iif) Other financial assets 10 140.52 80.58 Other current liabilities 23 143.97 92.73
Deferred tax assets 9 11.60 18.14 o
Non current tax assets (net) 22 21.31 33.74 Provisions 19 7.38 8.68
Other non-current assets 11 233.06 244.10 Current tax liabilities (Net) 22 14.20 12.49
Total non-current assets 10,522.29 8,990.49 Total current liabilities 4,440.31 3,571.13
Current assets Total Liabilities 7,211.25 6,072.99
Inventories 12 2,138.47 1,465.82 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,776.61 12,929.41
Financial assets Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
(i) Investments 7 316.74 412.52 See accompanying notes to the consolidated 4 to 47
(ii) Trade receivables 13 1,792.45 1,274.56 financial statements
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14 450.48 138.29
ED/)) Eg;:sbalances other than above 185 32(7) 1‘3;1 As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(vi)Other financial assets 10 225.83 225.85 For BSR & Co. LLP
Other current assets 11 309.68 266.96 Chartered Accountants
Total current assets 5,251.32 3,938.92 ICAI Firm registration no.
Assets classified as held for sale 42 C 3.00 - 101248W / .W-100022 . . .
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Membership No.: 090075 Director DIN - 00008557 DIN - 00356188
Equity Place: Gurugram DIN - 00671567 Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Equity share capital 16 297.44 60.26 Date: May 27, 2022 Elacgz Gurugram Date: May 09, 2022 Date: May 09, 2022
ate: May 09, 2022
Other equity 17 8,267.92 6,796.16
Total equity 8,565.36 6,856.42 Rahul Jain Rajat Lakhanpal
Liabilities President & CFO Vice President
e o, (Coporte Conplarce)
Financial liabilities Place: Gurugram
(i) Borrowings 18 1,753.30 1,965.01 Date: May 09, 2022
(i) Lease liabilities 43 95.18 63.83
(iii) Other financial liabilities 21 153.86 0.54
Provisions 19 51.58 43.55
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9 677.46 386.16
Other non-current liabilities 23 39.56 42.77
Total non - current liabilities 2,770.94 2,501.86
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (conTD)

for the year ended March 31, 2022 for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated) (All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I Revenue from operations 24 12,433.66 8,400.04 XII Other comprehensive income
II  Other income 25 115.51 66.35 A Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
III Total Income (I + II) 12,549.17 8,466.39 0] Remeasuremen.ts of t.he defined benefit plans 17.2,36.2 (7.47) 2.68
v E Income tax on item (i) above 17.2, 32 2.55 (0.84)
xpenses . B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Cost of materials consumed 26.1 6,171.10 4,027.68 (i) Exchange differences on translation of foreign 17.9 1.30 36.44
Purchases of stock-in-trade 26.2 175.59 62.92 operations
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 26.3 (279.75) (71.66) (i) Effective portion of gains and loss on _ 17.3 39.99 132.33
progress and stock-in-trade designated portion of hedging instruments in a
] cash flow hedge
Employee benefits expense 27 780.00 621.40 Income tax on item (ii) above 32 (13.03) (46.24)
Finance costs 28 115.93 133.95 (iii) Cost of hedging reserve 17.4 (2.17) 3.46
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 517.23 453.08 Income tax on item (iii) above 32 (0.45) (0.33)
Other expenses 30 2,483.52 1,626.37 Total otherfcomprc(&h?r;sive(income)f)or the 20.72 127.50
year, net of taxes (A(i) + B(i+ii+iii
Total Expenses (IV 9,963.62 6,853.74 S
P av) ! XIII Total comprehensive income for the year 1,909.64 1,325.44
Vv Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,585.55 1,612.65 (XI + XII)
(111 - IV) Basicand Diluted earning perequity share (in<) 39
VI Tax expense related to continuing operations 31 From continuing operations 63.75 40.58
Current tax 657.53 357.99 From discontinued operations . (0.01)
Deferred tax From continuing and discontinued operations 63.75 40.57
- MAT credit entitlement (25.27) (5.38) Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
- Others 64.37 61.79 See accompanying notes to the consolidated 4 to 47
Total tax expense related to continuing 696.63 414.40 financial statements
operations
VII Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,888.92 1,198.25 As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(V-VI) For BS R & Co. LLP
VIII Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinued 42A - (2.73) Chartered Accountants
operations ICAI Firm registration no.
P 101248W / W-100022
IX Tax expense / (credit) of discontinued 31 - (2.42) Kaushal Kishore Ashish Bharat Ram  Kartik Bharat Ram Bharti Gupta Ramola
operations Partner Chairman and Managing Joint Managing Director  Director
- . - _ Membership No.: 090075 Director DIN - 00008557 DIN - 00356188
X Profit f_or thiﬁelar ;;?m discontinued (0.31) Place: Gurugram DIN - 00671567 Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
operations ( - 1X) Date: May 27, 2022 Place: Gurugram Date: May 09, 2022 Date: May 09, 2022
XI Total Profit for the year (VII + X) 1,888.92 1,197.94 Date: May 09, 2022
Rahul Jain Rajat Lakhanpal
President & CFO Vice President
Place: Gurugram (Corporate Compliance)

Date: May 09, 2022 and Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2022
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (conTD.)

for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax

for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
(i) The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) -7 on “Statement of Cash Flows”

(i) During the year, the Company paid in cash ¥ 21.75 crores (Previous year: ¥10.18 crores) towards corporate social

- Continuing Operations 2,585.55 1,612.65 responsibility (CSR) expenditure.
Adjust-ml?elrS]gs rf];'rr]UEd Operations ) (2.73) (iii)  For cash flow information of discontinued operations, Refer note 42 A
Finance costs 115.93 134.01 (iv) Thefollowing table discloses changes in liabilities arising from historical activities including both cash and non cash changes.
INnt;ares_t mcomf ¢ lant and . t (2;'88) (g'gg) Particulars As at Cash Non-cash changes As at
et gain on sale of property, plant and equipmen ) (2.90) (5.99) March 31, flowfrom Upfront Exchange Finance Interim Lease Utilisation March 31,
it galn on fnandal assets meZSLg‘}d(at for value tE;°”9h profit and loss (208) (@545 2021 financing fees fluctuation cost dividend liability of securities 2022
redit impaired assets provide written bac . . A, N s B
Amortisation of grant income (1.76) (1.38) activities amortised  changes* declared recognised premium
Depreciation and amortisation expense 517.23 453.08 Equity share capital 60.26 0.20 - - - - - 236.98 297.44
Property, plant and equipment and inventory discarded / provided 18.80 3.40 Security Premium 736.25 - - - - - - (226.69) 509.56
Provision / liabilities no longer required written back (2.71) (11.99) Non current borrowings ~ 2,425.26 62.20 2.24 7.79 - - - - 2,497.49
Net unrealised currency exchange fluctuations loss /(gain) (39.44) (9.05) Current borrowings* 965.70 84.98 - (8.82) - - - - 1,041.86
Employee share based payment expense 1111 0.97 Interest accrued 5.79 (117.25) - - 11593 - - - 4.47
Stamp duty on purchase of investments 0.08 0.15 Lease liability 77.63 (25.68) - - 8.69 - 55.20 - 115.84
Adjustments for _(increase) /decrease in operating assets:- Dividend 6.57 (211.74) - - - 211.89 - R 6.72
Trade receivables (507.14) (400.10) Total 4,277.46 _ (207.29) 2.24 (1.03) 124.62 211.89 55.20 10.29 4,473.38
Inventories (665.67) (259.83)
||:03n5 Ecurrent) ) Ei%gg (01(-5017) Particulars As at Cash Non-cash changes As at
oans (non-current : . March 31, flow from“ypfrontfees  Exchange Finance Interim Lease liability March 31,
Other assets (current) (23.11) 35.70 2020 financing “amortised fluctuation  cost* dividend  recognised 2021
Other assets (non-current) (1.85) (3.96) activities changes* declared
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:- Equi ; N N N R N
quity share capital 58.50 1.76 60.26
Trade payables 510.11 480.23 Security Premium (et of - 736.25 - - - - - 736.25
Provisions 6.68 7.46 issue expenses)
Other liabilities (non-current) 0.34 - Non current borrowing A 3,091.38  (685.57) 4.34 15.11 - - - 2,425.26
Other liabilities (current) _ 21.58 16.44 Current borrowings* 955.44 14.78 - (4.52) - - - 965.70
Cash generated from operations 2,507.32 2,026.99 Interest accrued 20.14 (157.36) R S 13401 R _ 5.79
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (401.60) (255.31) Lease liability 87.70 (20.19) R B 6.49 R 3.63 77.63
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,105.72 1,771.68 Dividend 6.04 (140.78) R B - 141.31 - 6.57
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES . Total 4,228.20 _ (251.11) 4.34 10.59 140.50  141.31 3.63  4,277.46
Payment made for acquisition of business by subsidiary (9.96) - - - — -
(Refer note 46) A including current maturities of long term borrowings
Net sale / (purchases) of mutual funds 102.84 (188.57) * excluding current maturity of long term borrowings
Stamp duty on purchase of investments (0.08) (0.15) # including amount capitalized
Interestlreceived sored b and cash I 31.60 ( 0.09; Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents 104.98 134.52 . . . :
Payment for purchase of property, plant, equipment, capital work-in- (1,832.07) (1,214.35) See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 4to 47
progress and intangible assets As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 14.95 9.66
Grant Received from Government of Republic of Hungary - 28.16 For BS R & Co. LLP
Net cash used in investing activities (1,587.74) (1,499.68) Chartered Accountants
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ICAI Firm registration no.
Proceeds from issue of shares 0.20 750.00 101248W / W-100022
Cost incurred on issue of shares - (11.99) . i . i
Proceeds from borrowings (Non-current) 533.15 1,304.84 Kaushal Kishore Ash_lsh Bharat Ram Ka_nrtlk Bha!‘at Ram B_hartl Gupta Ramola
Repayment of borrowings (Non-current) (470.94) (1,990.41) Partner Chairman and Managing Joint Managing Director  Director
Net proceeds / (repayment) from borrowings (Current) 84.98 14.78 Membership No.: 090075 Director DIN - 00008557 DIN - 00356188
Dividends on equity share capital paid (211.74) (140.78) Place: Gurugram DIN - 00671567 Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Payment towards lease liability (25.68) (20.19) Date: May 27, 2022 Place: Gurugram Date: May 09, 2022 Date: May 09, 2022
Finance costs paid (117.25) (157.36) Date: May 09, 2022
Net cash used in financing activities (207.28) (251.11) !
D EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 1.49 0.96 Rahul Jain Rajat Lakhanpal
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 312.19 21.85 Presi F Vice Presi
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 138.29 116.44 P[:Ef?&% (ﬁag (é%er Orrei;stlgegotm liance)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer to note 14) 450.48 138.29 ’ 9 P P
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Date: May 09, 2022

and Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Amount
Balance at March 31, 2020 58.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year 1.76
Balance at March 31, 2021 60.26
Changes in equity share capital during the year 237.18
Balance at March 31, 2022 297.44
(b) Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus* Items of other comprehensive income* Total

Capital General

Capital Debenture Securities Employee
reserve reserve redemption redemption Premium

reserve reserve based
payment
reserve

share

Retained  Foreign

Equity Effective Cost of

earnings  currency instruments portion of hedging
translation  through other cash flow reserve
reserve comprehensive hedge
income

Balance at March 31, 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Payment of dividend ~

Transfer from Debenture redemption
reserve

Transfer to Debenture redemption
reserve

Employee share based payments to
employees

Premium on issue of equity shares (net

of issue expenses) A

Balance at March 31, 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Payment of dividend ~

Tax on Dividend

Employee share based payment
expense

Recognised / (released) on vesting of
shares issued under employee share
purchase scheme

Utilisation on issue of bonus equity
shares

193.77 573.77

75.00

193.77 648.77

10.48 75.00 - 1.56

(75.00)
62.50

0.96

736.25

10.48 6250  736.25 252

1093
1029 (10.23)

(236.98)

411769  (14.67)
1,197.94 -
1.84 36.44

- 1,199.78 36.44

(141.31)

(62.50)

5,113.66 21.77

1,888.92

49) 130

- 1,884.00 130
(211.89)

(4.22)  (78.56) - 4,874.82

1,197.94
86.00 313 127.50

86.09 3.13 1,325.44

- (14131)

0.96
736.25

(4.22) 753 3.13 6,796.16

- 1,888.92
%9% (262 2072

2696  (2.62) 1,909.64
- (21189)

L1093

006

- (236.98)

Balance at March 31, 2022
* Refer note 17
~ Refer note 16.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

193.77 648.77

10.48 62.50 _ 509.56

3.22 6,785.77 23.07

(4.22) 34.49 0.51 8,267.92

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration no.

101248W / W-100022

Kaushal Kishore
Partner

Membership No.: 090075

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2022
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashish Bharat Ram
Chairman and Managing
Director

DIN - 00671567

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

Rahul Jain
President & CFO
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2022

Kartik Bharat Ram
Joint Managing Director
DIN - 00008557

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

Rajat Lakhanpal

Vice President
(Corporate Compliance)
and Company Secretary
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

Bharti Gupta Ramola
Director

DIN - 00356188

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SRF Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited
Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company’s equity shares are listed at the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National
Stock Exchange (NSE). The registered office of
the Company is situated at The Galleria, DLF
Mayur Vihar, Unit No. 236 and 237, Second Floor,
Mayur Vihar Place, Noida Link Road, Mayur Vihar
Phase I Extn, Delhi - 110091. The Company’s
parent company is KAMA Holdings Limited.

The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the Group) are
manufacturing, purchase and sale of technical
textiles, chemicals, packaging films and
other polymers.

The consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on May 09, 2022.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 (“the Act”) as amended thereafter and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual basis and under
the historical cost convention, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

- Derivative financial instruments

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured
at fair value less present value of defined
benefit obligation

- Share based payments

The functional currency of the Company is ‘INR’.
The functional currencies of Group companies
are USD, THB, ZAR and EURO. The financial
statements are presented in INR and all values
are rounded to the nearest crores, except when
otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
holding group and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the group:

e  has power over the investee;

e isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss from the date the group gains
control until the date when the group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
group and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Necessary adjustments are made in the
consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Company’s accounting policies if any.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses, and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for

the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

2.2

The subsidiaries considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are: -

Name of subsidiary

Country of
incorporation ownership as at ownership as at

Proportion of  Proportion of

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Indian Subsidiaries

SRF Holiday Home Limited

SRF Altech Limited

SRF Employees Welfare Trust (Controlled Trust)
Foreign Subsidiaries

SRF Global BV

SRF Europe Kft (100% subsidiary

of SRF Global BV)

SRF Industries (Thailand) Limited

(100% subsidiary of SRF Global BV)

SRF Industex Belting (Pty) Limited (100%
subsidiary of SRF Global BV)

SRF Flexipak (South Africa) (Pty) Limited
(100% subsidiary of SRF Global BV)

India 100% 100%
India 100% -
India * *
Netherlands 100% 100%
Hungary 100% 100%
Thailand 100% 100%
Republic 100% 100%
of South Africa

Republic 100% 100%

of South Africa

* By virtue of management control

The group owns 22.60% (Previous year —
22.60%) in Malanpur Captive Power Limited
and the same has not been considered for the
purposes of consolidation, since the group does
not exercise significant influence over Malanpur
Captive Power Limited.

The group owns 26.32% (Previous year —
26.32%) in Vaayu Renewable Energy (Tapti)
Private Limited and the same has not been
considered for the purposes of consolidation,
since the group does not exercise significant
influence over Vaayu Renewable Energy (Tapti)
Private Limited.

The principal accounting policies are set
out below.

Current versus non-current classification
The group presents assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification.
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An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold
or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

-It is expected to be settled in normal
operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- There is no unconditional right to defer the

settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The group classifies all other liabilities
as non-current.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for the purpose of current / non
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

All items of property plant and equipment have
been measured at fair value at the date of
transition to Ind AS. The Group have opted such
fair valuation as deemed cost at the transition
date i.e. April 1, 2015.

Cost of acquisition or construction is inclusive of
freight, duties, non recoverable taxes, incidental
expenses and interest on loans attributable to
the acquisition of qualifying assets, up to the
date of commissioning of the assets.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for qualifying assets, upto the date of
commissioning of the assets

Likewise, when a major inspection for faults
is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria is
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated accordingly.

24

Assets are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.

Capital Work in Progress: Project under which
assets are not yet ready for their intended use
are carried at cost comprising direct cost, related
incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the
definition of PPE, i.e., when the group intends to
use these for more than a period of 12 months.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an
asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its estimated residual value.

Depreciation has been provided on the cost
of assets less their residual values on straight
line method on the basis of estimated useful
life of assets determined by the Group which
are different from the useful life as prescribed
in Schedule II of the 2013 Act. The estimated
useful life of the assets have been assessed
based on technical advice, taking into account
the nature of the asset, the estimated usage
of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties
and maintenance support, etc. and are as under:

Roads 40-50 years
Buildings (including 5-60 years
temporary structures)

Plant and equipment 2-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-20 years
Office equipment 3-20 years
Vehicles 4-5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis

except, assets costing upto ¥ 5,000 each, which
are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for

the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

2.5

An item of property, plant and equipment or any
significant part initially recognised of such item
of property plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss when the asset
is derecognised.

The estimated useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The useful
lives considered are as follows:

Trademarks / Brand 10-30 years
Technical Knowhow 30-40 years
Software 3-5 years
Other intangibles 2.5-12 years

The group has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its intangibles assets
recognised as on April 1, 2015 measured as per
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2.6

the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
its deemed cost as of transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms
part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefit are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development of
products is included under the natural heads of
expenditure in the year in which it is incurred
except which relate to development activities
whereby research findings are applied to a
plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved products and processes.

Such development costs are capitalised if they
can be reliably measured, the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset.

Following initial recognition of the development
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

2.7

2.8

any. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is
available for use. It is amortised over the period
of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense
is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset. During the
period of development, the asset is tested for
impairment annually.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

The Group assesses, at each reporting date,
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual

impairment testing for an asset is required, the
group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets.

Impairment loss is recognised when the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. In such cases, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other
available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation
on detailed budgets and forecast, which are
prepared separately for each of the group’s CGUs
to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of 5 years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after
5th year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, group extrapolates cash
flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified.
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2.9

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the
group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years.

Leasing

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assess whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified
asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly and should be physically distinct or
represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified;

— the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of use; and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset. The Group has this right when it has the
decision- making rights that are most relevant
to changing how and for what purpose the
asset is used. In rare cases, where the decision
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about how and for what purpose the asset is
used is predetermined, the Group has the right
to direct the use of the asset if either:

e the Group has the right to operate the
asset; or

e the Group designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose
it will be used

An entity shall reassess whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions
of the contract are changed.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.

Group as lessee
The Group accounts for assets taken under lease
arrangement in the following manner:

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right of use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentive received.

The right of wuse asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight line method from
the commencement date to the end of the lease
term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the basis of remaining
lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of
the lease liability.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of
use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low value assets. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight- line
basis over the lease term.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or
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sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. Borrowing costs incurred for the period
from commencement of activities relating to
construction/development of the qualifying asset
upto the date of capitalisation of such asset
are added to the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur.

In case of a specific borrowing taken for
the purpose of acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset, the borrowing
costs capitalised shall be the actual borrowing
costs incurred during the period less any interest
income earned on temporary investment of
specific borrowing pending expenditure on
qualifying asset.

In case funds are borrowed generally and such
funds are used for the purpose of acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset,
the borrowing costs capitalised are calculated
by applying the weighted average capitalisation
rate on general borrowings outstanding during
the period, to the expenditures incurred on the
qualifying asset.

If any specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended
use, that borrowing is considered part of the
funds that are borrowed generally for calculating
the capitalisation rate.

2.11 Foreign Currencies

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
on initial recognition at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

(i) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency remaining unsettled
at the end of the year, are translated
at the closing rates prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in foreign currency are
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reported using the exchange rate at the
date of transaction. Any gains or losses
arising due to differences in exchange rates
at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted for in the Statement of Profit
and Loss either under the head foreign
exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as
the case may be, except those relating to
exchange differences arising from cash flow
hedges to the extent that the hedges are
effective and those covered below.

(i) Exchange differences pertaining to long
term foreign currency loans obtained or
re-financed on or before March 31, 2016

Exchange differences on long-term
foreign currency monetary items relating
to acquisition of depreciable assets are
adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets
and depreciated over the balance useful
life of the assets.

(i) Exchange differences pertaining to long
term foreign currency loans obtained or
re-financed on or after April 1, 2016

The exchange differences pertaining to
long term foreign currency loans obtained
or re-financed on or after April 1, 2016 is
treated in accordance with Ind AS 21/ Ind
AS 109. Refer point (i) above.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower. The basis of
determining the cost for various categories of
inventory are as follows:

(a) Raw materials, packing material and stores
and spares including fuel - Cost includes
cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis. The aforesaid
items are valued below cost if the finished
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products in which they are to be incorporated
are expected to be sold at a loss.

(b) Traded goods, Stock in progress and
finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate
share of overheads.

(c) By products - At estimated realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets

Provisions

The group recognised a provision when there
is a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of past events and it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources would be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made.

When the group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

control of the group or a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation. A contingent liability also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The group does not recognize
a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities and
commitments are reviewed by the management
at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are neither recognised
nor disclosed in the financial statements.
However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related income are recognised in the period
in which the change occurs.

2.14 Revenue recognition

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of products is
recognised upon transfer of control of
products to customers at the time of
shipment to or receipt of goods by the
customers. Service income is recognised
as and when the underlying services are
performed. The Group exercises judgement
in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or
over a period of time.

Revenues are measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration,
net of tax collected from customers and
remitted to government authorities such
as sales tax/value added tax and goods
and services tax and applicable discounts
and allowances.

Any fees including upfront fees received
in relation to contract manufacturing

STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

arrangements is recognised on straight
line basis over the period over which the
Group satisfies the underlying performance
obligations. Contract assets are recognised
when there is excess of revenue earned
over billings on contracts. Contract assets
are classified as unbilled revenue (only
act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash as per
contractual terms. Advance from customers
(M“contract liability”) is recognised when the
group has received consideration from the
customer before it delivers the goods.

b) Interest and dividend income

Interest income is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the group using the effective
interest rate and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment has been
established(provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

c) Export incentive

The benefit accrued under the Duty
Drawback scheme and other schemes
as per the Export and Import Policy in
respect of exports made under the said
Schemes is included under the head
“Revenue from Operations” under ‘Export
and other incentives’. Also refer policy on
“Government Grants

2.15 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
current tax and deferred tax.

a) Current tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
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b)

be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss account
i.e. in Other comprehensive income or
equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using substantively enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which the temporary differences
are expected to be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
if such items relate to taxes on income
levied by the same governing tax laws and
the group has a legally enforceable right
for such set off.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
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are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity.

Deferred tax  assets/liabilities are
not recognised for below mentioned
temporary differences:

(i) At the time of initial recognition
of goodwill;

(if) Initial recognition of assets or liabilities
(other than in a business combination)
at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

(iii) In respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in
accordance with the tax laws, which gives
future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is
considered as an asset if there is convincing
evidence that the group will pay normal
income tax. Accordingly, MAT asset is
recognised in the consolidated Balance
Sheet when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with it will
flow to the group.

The group considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an
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uncertain tax treatment. If the group
concludes that it is probable that the
taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the group determines the
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates
consistently with the tax treatment used or
planned to be used in its income tax filings.
However, if the group concludes that it is
not probable that the taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
group reflects the effect of uncertainty in
determining the related taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits or tax rates.

2.16 Government grants

Government grants are recognised where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attached conditions will
be complied with.

A government grant that becomes receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses incurred
in a previous period. Such a grant is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which it
becomes receivable.

Government grants are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants related to assets are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet as
deferred income and is recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the expected
useful life of the related assets.

2.17 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Wages and salaries including non monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled within
the operating cycle after the end of the period

in which the related services are rendered
are measured at the undiscounted amount
expected to be paid

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund administered through Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation
Fund, National pension scheme and Employees’
State Insurance Corporation are defined
contribution schemes. Contributions to such
schemes are charged to the statement of
profit and loss in the year when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions. The group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to such schemes.

Defined benefit plans

The group has defined benefit plan such as
gratuity, provident fund for certain category of
employees administered through a recognised
provident fund trust and legal severance plans.

Provision for gratuity, provident fund for certain
category of employees administered through
a recognised provident fund trust and legal
severance plans are determined on an actuarial
basis at the end of the year and charged to
consolidated statement of profit and loss, other
than remeasurements. The cost of providing
these benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains
and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling,
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and return on
plan assets), are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified
to consolidated statement of profit and loss in
subsequent periods.
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Other long term employee benefits

The group also has other long term benefits plan
such as compensated absences and retention
pay. Provision for compensated absences and
long term retention pay are determined on an
actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged
to consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
The cost of providing these benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method.

Share based payments

Equity settled share based payments to
employees under SRF Long Term Share Based
Incentive Plan (SRF LTIP) are measured at the
fair value (which is the market price less exercise
price) of the equity instruments on the grant date.
This compensation cost relating to employee
stock purchase scheme is amortised over the
remaining tenure over which the employees
renders their service on a straight line basis.

2.18 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet
comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.20 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
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and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

A) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement,
financial assets of the group are classified in
three categories:

a) At amortised cost

b) At fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL)

c) At fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in other income in the consolidated
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statement of profit and loss.
The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets not classified as
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI as are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in the scope of
Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value.
Equity instruments which are held for
trading are measured at fair value through
profit and loss.

For all other equity instruments, the group
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in
other comprehensive income.

The group makes such election on
an instrument by instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the group decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. This cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to
statement of profit and loss on disposal of
such instruments.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable,
a part of a financial asset) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the
balance sheet) when:

a)

b)

The rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired, or

The group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (i) the group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (ii) the group has
neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the group has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of
the group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the group also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the
group has retained. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the group could
be required to repay.
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B)

When the group has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred asset,
the group continue to recognise the
transferred asset in its entirety and
recognise a financial liability for the
consideration received.

Impairment of financial assets

The group recognizes loss allowance using
the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss. Loss allowance
for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial
assets with contractual cash flows other
than trade receivable, ECLs are measured
at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime
ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities and Equity instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs, if any.

The group’s financial liabilities include
borrowings and trade and other payables
including derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Borrowings

Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any differences between
the proceeds(net of transaction cost)
and the redemption/repayment amount
is recognised in profit and loss over the
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period of the borrowings using the Effective
interest rate method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent the
liabilities for goods and services provided to
the group prior to the end of the financial
year which are unpaid.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

Equity Instruments are any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Debt or equity instruments issued by the
group are classified as either financial
liability or as equity in accordance with the
substance of contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liabilities and
an equity instruments.
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2.21 Derivative and Non Derivative financial

instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The group uses derivative financial instruments
(such as forward currency contracts, interest rate
swaps and full currency swaps) or non derivative
financial assets/liabilities to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. The group
has opted for “Hedge Accounting” for all its
derivative as well as non-derivative financial
instrument used for hedging. Accordingly, at
the inception of the hedge the group formally
designates a hedge relationship between the
‘hedging instrument’ and ‘hedged item’ which
determines the initial recognition of the financial
instrument as Fair Value Hedge or Cashflow
hedge. The documentation includes the group’s
risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic
relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the
entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in
the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s
fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they
actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they
were designated. These financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit and loss when the
hedge item affects profit and loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges
are classified as:

a) Fair value hedges when hedging the
exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability.

b) Cash flow hedges when hedging the
exposure to variability in cash flows that
is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised
firm commitment.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge
accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging
instrument is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. The change in the
fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying
value of the hedged item and is also recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the
unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm
commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the
hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability
with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in
consolidated profit and loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income in the cash flow
hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as
hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk
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in forecast transactions and firm commitments.
The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency
contracts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. In some cases,
the group separates the premium element and
the spot element of a forward contract and
designates only the change in fair value of the
spot element of forward exchange contracts as
the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging
relationships. In such cases, the changes in the
fair value of the premium element of the forward
contract or the foreign currency basis spread
of the financial instrument is accumulated
in a separate component of equity as ‘cost of
hedging’. The changes in the fair value of such
premium element or foreign currency basis
spread are reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment on a straight-line
basis over the period of the forward contract or
the financial instrument.

The Group also designates certain non derivative
financial liabilities, such as foreign currency
borrowings from banks, as hedging instruments
for the hedge of foreign currency risk associated
with  highly probable transactions and,
accordingly, applies cash flow hedge accounting
for such relationships.

Amounts recognised as other comprehensive
income are transferred to profit or loss when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as
when the hedged financial income or financial
expense is recognised or when a forecast
transaction occurs.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy),
or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or
when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, the hedge accounting will
be discontinued prospectively. Any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remains separately in
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other equity if the forecast transaction or the
foreign currency firm commitment is expected
to occur else the amount shall be immediately
reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

2.22 Fair value measurement

The group measures some of its financial
instruments at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset
or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

b) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted
prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

c) Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group
has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.23 Foreign Currency translation reserve

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into Rupees at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting
date and their statements of profit or loss are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. For practical reasons,
the group uses an average rate to translate
income and expense items, if the average rate
approximates the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to

that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

2.24 Segment reporting

Based on “Management Approach” as defined
in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the group’s
performance and allocates the resources based
on an analysis of various performance indicators
by business segments. Inter segment sales and
transfers are reflected at market prices.

Unallocable items includes general corporate
income and expense items which are not
allocated to any business segment.

Segment Policies:

The group prepares its segment information in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted
for preparing and presenting the consolidated
financial statements of the group as a whole.
Common allocable costs are allocated to each
segment on an appropriate basis.

2.25 Dividend

The group recognises a liability to make
cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution
is no longer at the discretion of the group.
As per the corporate laws in India, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved
by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

2.26 Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. The appropriate level of management
must be committed to a plan to sell, an active
programme to locate a buyer and complete the
plan has been initiated, the sale is considered
highly probable and is expected within one year
from the date of classification.
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Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets once classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Company that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and:

a) Represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations,

b) Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or

c) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale.

Discontinued operations are excluded from
the results of continuing operations and are
presented separately in the statement of
profit and loss.

2.27 Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition
of a business and control is transferred to the
Group. In determining whether a particular set
of activities and assets is a business, the Group
assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive process and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition
is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment.

If consideration transferred is less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised in

302 | Annual Report 2021-22

other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying
the business combination as a bargain purchase.

2.28 Recent Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies
new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1,
2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments specify that to qualify for
recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions
of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India at the acquisition date. These changes
do not significantly change the requirements of
Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale
proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit
or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costs considered as part of cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The amendment
is essentially a clarification and the Company
does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling
a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of
fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate

directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would
be direct labour, materials) or an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a
clarification and the Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind
AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity
includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of
Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise
a financial liability. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind
AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives
were described in that illustration. The Company
does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Judgements, estimates and  underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas
of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements is included
in the following notes.

e  C(Classification and lease term determination
of leasing arrangement — Note 2.9

e Derecognition of trade receivables and
hedge effectiveness- Note 2.20

. Fair value measurement of derivative
instruments — Note 2.22

e Assessment of useful life of property,
plant and equipment and intangible
asset — Note 2.4

e  Recognition and estimation of tax expense
including determination of applicable
tax rate for measuring deferred tax
balances— Note 2.15

e  Estimation of assets and obligations
relatingtoemployeebenefits(includingactuarial
assumptions) — Note 2.17

e Assessment of impairment of financial
assets and non-financial assets — Note
2.20 and Note 2.8

e  Recognition and measurement  of
contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources — Note 2.13
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Roads Buildings Plant and Furniture Office Vehicle Total
land equipment and fixtures equipment

Cost
Balance at March 31,2020 382.94 74.22 836.28  6,082.10 29.01 6430 41.70 7,510.55
Additions/adjustments 0.99 23.36 367.86  1,458.06 4.35 10.58 6.59 1,871.79
Disposals/adjustments - (0.45) (6.29) (24.63) (0.32) (2.44) (3.99) (38.12)
Effect of foreign currency 3.37 1.13 15.79 51.63 0.34 0.70 0.01 72.97
exchange differences
Balance at March 31,2021 387.30 98.26 1,213.64 7,567.16 33.38 73.14 44.31 9,417.19
Additions/adjustments 12.78 2.27 113.29 924.29 2.75 13.33 1041 1,079.12
Disposals/adjustments - - (5.84) (60.90) (0.54) (3.92) (4.85) (76.05)
Effect of foreign currency (0.60) (0.06) (3.42) (14.55) 0.03 0.07 (0.01) (18.54)
exchange differences
Balance at March 31,2022 399.48 100.47 1,317.67 8,416.00 35.62 82.62 49.86 10,401.72
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at March 31,2020 - 7.74 102.52  1,310.27 11.13 35.15 20.81 1,487.62
Depreciation expenses - 2.14 29.68 377.63 2.42 7.55 736  426.78
Disposals/adjustments - - (0.03) (2.70) (0.14) (1.25) (2.76) (6.88)
Effect of foreign currency - 0.11 1.78 10.05 0.13 0.21 0.18 12.46
exchange differences
Balance at March 31,2021 - 9.99 133.95 1,695.25 13.54 41.66 25.59 1,919.98
Depreciation expenses - 2.47 34.93 427.66 2.61 9.12 7.85 484.64
Disposals/adjustments - - (0.63) (46.40) (0.32) (3.54) (3.63) (54.52)
Effect of foreign currency - 0.01 0.37 0.59 0.02 0.10 (0.01) 1.08
exchange differences
Balance at March 31,2022 - 1247 168.62 2,077.10 15.85 47.34 29.80 2,351.18
Net block
Balance at March 31,2021 387.30 88.27 1,079.69 5,871.91 19.84 3148 18.72 7,497.21
Balance at March 31,2022 399.48 88.00 1,149.05 6,338.90 19.77 35.28 20.06 8,050.54
Notes:
(i) Borrowing cost capitalised during the year ¥ 18.41 crores (Previous year: ¥13.07 Crores) with a capitalisation rate

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

ranging from 0.40% to 3.55% (Previous year: 0.5% to 8.09%).

The industrial freehold land measuring 32.41 acres at the group’s plant in Gummudipoondi, Tamil Nadu had been
acquired by the Company w.e.f. January 1, 2001 pursuant to a scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the Hon'ble
High court of Judicature at Madras and the Hon'ble High court of Delhi. Out of the said land, there is a dispute on a
land parcel of 2.74 acres. Based on the legal documentation available, the management is of the view that the said
dispute is not tenable.

Capital expenditure incurred during the year includes ¥ 8.49 crores (Previous year - ¥ 13.46 crores) on account
of research and development. Depreciation for the year includes depreciation on assets deployed in research and
development as per note 47 (a) below.

Refer to note 18.1 for information on PPE pledged as security by the group. Additionally, non funded working capital
facilities from banks amounting to ¥ 37.80 crores (previous year: 58.50) are secured by hypothecation of Captive
Power Plant (CPP) and HFC134A plant situated at Dahej in state of Gujarat.

Refer to note 47 (c) for additions/adjustments on account of exchange difference during the year.

The group accounts for all capitalizations of property, plant and equipment through capital work in progress, and,
therefore, the movement in capital work in progress is the difference between closing and opening balance of capital
work in progress as adjusted by additions in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Disposals during the current year include property, plant and equipment classified as assets held for sale. Refer
note 42 C below.
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4.1 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CWIP)

0)

(if)

Ageing of capital work-in-progress:

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
Projects in progress
As at March 31, 2022 1,554.87 102.92 13.84 - 1,671.63
As at March 31, 2021 745.04 26.27 0.95 - 772.26

CWIP completion schedule for capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded
its cost compared to its original plan:

As at March 31, 2022
To be completed in

Less than 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than

1 year 3 years

Projects in progress
Chloromethanes plant 333.38 - - -
Augmentation of power and steam capacity 138.23 - - -
Others * 164.04 0.02 - -
635.65 0.02 - -

As at March 31, 2021
To be completed in
Less than 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress
R22 facility 87.08 - - -
Dedicated facility for SS-04 52.05 - - -
Others * 143.29 1.40 - -
282.42 1.40 - -

* Comprises projects not considered material at an individual level.
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5 GOODWILL
Amount
Cost

Balance at March 31,2020 4.12
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance at March 31, 2021 4.12
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance at March 31, 2022 4.12

Accumulated Impairment losses
Balance at March 31,2020 3.50
Additions -
Balance at March 31, 2021 3.50
Additions (Refer note 42 C ) 0.62
Balance at March 31, 2022 4.12
Carrying Amount As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Industrial yarn unit - 0.62
- 0.62

The group had allocated goodwill to the above mentioned cash generating units and determined recoverable
amount of this allocated goodwill using cash flow projections based on financial budget as approved by the

directors of the Company.

6 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Trade Marks/ Technical Software Others Total
Brands Knowhow

Cost

Balance at March 31,2020 77.53 55.19 30.75 19.39 182.86

Additions / adjustments - - 4.19 - 4.19

Disposals/adjustments - - - - -

Balance at March 31, 2021 77.53 55.19 34.94 19.39 187.05

Additions / adjustments * - - 5.37 9.79 15.16

Disposals/adjustments (4.28) - (6.29) - (10.57)

Balance at March 31, 2022 73.25 55.19 34.02 29.18 191.64

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at March 31,2020 16.76 5.95 25.19 18.50 66.40

Amortisation expenses 2.45 1.70 4.04 0.05 8.24

Effects of foreign currency - 0.04 - 0.04

exchange differences

Balance at March 31, 2021 19.21 7.65 29.27 18.55 74.68
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Particulars Trade Marks/ Technical Software Others Total
Brands Knowhow

Amortisation expenses 2.45 1.70 3.90 0.11 8.16
Effects of foreign currency - - (0.03) - (0.03)
exchange differences
Disposals/adjustments (4.28) - (6.29) - (10.57)
Balance at March 31, 2022 17.38 9.35 26.85 18.66 72.24
Carrying Amount
Balance at March 31, 2021 58.32 47.54 5.67 0.84 112.37
Balance at March 31, 2022 55.87 45.84 7.17 10.52 119.40
Notes:
* “Other” intangible assets acquired through Business Combination (Refer note 46 below).

7 INVESTMENTS

As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Non-current

Investment in equity instruments 4.16 4.16

4.16 4.16

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 4.16 4.16

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 4.34 4.34
Current

Investment in mutual funds 121.86 197.16

Investment in bonds/Debentures 194.88 215.36

316.74 412.52

Aggregate book value and market value of quoted investments 194.88 215.36

Aggregate book value and market value of unquoted investments 121.86 197.16

7.1 Investment in equity instruments (at fair value through other comprehensive income)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investments (Non-current)
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up of Malanpur 42,21,535 4.22 42,21,535 4.22
Captive Power Limited
Less: impairment in value of investments (4.22) (4.22)
Equity Share of ¥ 10 each fully paid of Vaayu Renewable 50,000 0.05 50,000 0.05
Energy (Tapti) Private Limited
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid of Suryadev Alloys 13,54,000 4.11 13,54,000 4.11
& Power Private Limited
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up of Sanghi  6,70,000 0.12  6,70,000 0.12
Spinners India Limited
Less: impairment in value of investments - (0.12) - (0.12)

4.16 4.16
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7.2 Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profit and loss) 9
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number Amount Number Amount

Unquoted investments (Current)

ICICI Prudential P1543 Saving Fund-Growth Plan 36,12,365 121.86 36,12,365 117.16
Axis Overnight Fund- Regular Growth Plan - - 2,76,009 30.00
SBI Liquid Fund L72SG Regular Growth Plan - - 1,56,109 50.00

121.86 197.16

7.3 Investment in Bonds/Debentures (at fair value through profit and loss)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number Amount Number Amount
Quoted investments (Current)
Debentures
Non convertible debentures of Shriram Transport - - 250 32.11
Finance Company Limited 2021 of ¥ 10,00,000 each
7.35% non convertible debentures of NIIF - - 250 25.43
Infrastructure Finance Limited of ¥ 10,00,000 each
Non convertible debentures of Tata Capital Financial - - 30 3.56
Services Limited of ¥ 10,00,000 each
9.50% non convertible debenture of Piramal Capital & 63 5.04 - -
Housing Finance Limited 2022 of ¥ 8,00,000 each
Bonds
8.85% HDFC Bank Limited Perpetual Bonds 2022 of 500 50.08 500 51.00
% 10,00,000 each
8.99% Bank of Baroda Perpetual Bonds 2024 of 550 56.92 500 51.02
% 10,00,000 each
9.56% State Bank of India Perpetual Bonds 2023 of 500 52.33 500 52.24
¥ 10,00,000 each
8.50% State Bank of India Perpetual Bonds 2024 of 248 25.40 - -
% 10,00,000 each
8.50% State Bank of India Perpetual Bonds 2025 of 50 5.11 - -
% 10,00,000 each
194.88 215.36
8 LOANS
(unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non- current

Loans to employees 14.72 10.55
14.72 10.55
Current

Loans to employees 8.80 7.69

Others (other than related parties)
- Considered good - 3.52
- Credit impaired 2.74 2.74
Less: Provision for credit impaired loans (2.74) (2.74)
8.80 11.21
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DEFERRED TAX (NET)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets (liabilities) presented in balance sheet.
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets 107.26 331.70
Deferred tax liabilities (773.12) (699.72)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (665.86) (368.02)
Net Deferred tax assets after set off 11.60 18.14
Net Deferred tax liabilities after set off 677.46 386.16

The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising on account of te
are as follows:

mporary differences

2021-22 Opening Recognised in statement MAT Credit Recognised Foreign  Closing
balance of profit and loss Entitlement inother currency Balance
. ) X utilised comprehensive translation
Contlnl:ung Dlscontln_ued e EsE e
operations  operations the year
Deferred tax assets
Expenses deductible 23.49 (2.27) - - - 0.21 21.43
in future years
Provision for 1.26 (0.44) - - - 0.82
credit impaired
loans / receivables
MAT Credit Entitlement 274.66 25.27 - (241.48) - 58.45
Unabsorbed 23.95 (4.92) - - - (0.62) 18.41
carried forward losses
Others 8.34 (0.44) - - - 0.25 8.15
331.70 17.20 - (241.48) - (0.16) 107.26
Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and (683.28) (55.56) - (3.63) (742.47)
equipment and
intangible assets
Investment (10.85) (1.09) - (11.94)
in mutual funds
Cash flow hedges (4.28) - - (13.47) (17.75)
Others (1.31) 0.35 - - - (0.96)
(699.72) (56.30) - - (13.47) (3.63) (773.12)
Total (368.02) (39.10) - (241.48) (13.47) (3.79) (665.86)
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2020-21 Opening Recognised in statement MAT Credit Recognised in Foreign Closing 10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
balance of profit and loss Entitlement other  currency Balance (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Contim_ling Discontin_ued utilised compre:i:nsive translatifon As at As at
operations  operations e e year March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets Non-Current
Expenses deductible 27.70 (6.01) . . 1.80 23.49 Derivatives carried atfair value through other comprehensiveincome
in future years - Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 60.65 28.84
Provision for 0.90 0.37 - - - (0.01) 1.26 - Interest rate swaps used for hedging 0.36 -
credit impaired Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
loans / receivables - Security deposits
MAT Credit Entitlement 367.07 5.38 - (97.79) - 274.66 Related parties (Refer note 35) 3.53 3.54
Cash flow hedges 42.29 - - - (42.29) - - Other than related parties 30.12 32.35
Unabsorbed 22.98 (1.91) 2.42 - - 0.46 23.95 - Government grant and claims recoverable 15.86 15.85
carried forward losses - Deposit accounts with maturity beyond twelve months 30.00 -
Others 8.98 (1.40) - - - 0.76 8.34 140.52 80.58
469.92 (3.57) 2.42 (97.79) (42.29) 3.01 331.70 Current
Derivatives carried at fair value through profit and loss
Deferred tax liabilities - Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 3.64 4.39
Z;?ﬁ’;nrzr?t'z’;t da”d (617.02) (54.82) - - - (11.44)  (683.28) Derivatives carried atfair value through other comprehensiveincome
intangible assets - Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 60.52 56.70
Investment (7.95) (2.90) ) ) ) - (10.85) - Interest rate swaps used for hedging 3.16 1.01
in mutual funds Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
Cash flow hedges - - - - (4.28) - (4.28) - Security deposits
Others (6.19) 4.88 - - - - (1.31) Other than related parties 2.59 -
(631.16) (52.84) - - (4.28)  (11.44) (699.72) - Insurance claim recoverable 1.09 0.33
Total (161.24) (56.41) 2.42 (97.79) (46.57) (8.43) (368.02) - Government grant and claims recoverable 135.07 154.11
- Others 19.76 9.31
Notes: 225.83 225.85
O o e s o o e comp s e, 1o oy o o 11 OTHER ASSETS
undistributed profits of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(i) MAT credit entitlement of ¥ 74.02 Crores (previous year ¥ 74.02 Crores) expiring in the financial year ending As at As at

March 31, 2035 is not recognised, due to expected timing of exercise of the option under section 115BAA of

Income Tax Act, 1961.

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current

Capital advances 214.17 229.30
Prepaid expenses 0.72 0.25
Cenvat/Service tax/Goods and Services Tax/ sales tax recoverable 18.05 14.43
Claims recoverable under Post EPCG scheme and others 0.12 0.12
Total other non-current assets 233.06 244.10
Current
Prepaid expenses 17.22 11.97
Cenvat/Service tax/ Goods and Services Tax/ sales tax recoverable 135.25 103.02
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13

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Export incentives recoverable 16.21 32.76
Deposits with customs and excise authorities 15.52 17.58
Advance to suppliers 124.11 99.61
Others 1.37 2.02
Total other current assets 309.68 266.96
INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw material (including packing material) 1,058.18 683.36
Stock in progress 237.41 176.47
Finished goods 535.44 338.59
Stores and spares (including fuel) 280.05 263.08
Traded goods 27.39 4.32
2,138.47 1,465.82
Goods-in-transit included above:
Raw material (including packing material) 256.55 241.43
Finished goods 162.25 100.47
Stores and spares (including fuel) 2.51 1.06
Traded goods 9.62 0.33
430.93 343.29

Notes

(i)  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes ¥ 5.92 crores.(Previous year: ¥ 11.22 Crores) in respect

of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value.

(ii) Refer Note 18.1 for information on inventories pledged as security by the group.

(iii) The method of valuation of inventory has been stated in note 2.12

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Current As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good 1,792.45 1,274.56
Unsecured, credit impaired 3.45 5.03
Less: Provision for credit impaired receivables (3.45) (5.03)
1,792.45 1,274.56

Notes

(i)  The credit period generally allowed on sales varies, on a case to case basis, business to business and based on

market conditions. Generally credit period allowed is upto 120 days.
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(iM)

(iii)

(iv)

Ageing of receivables:

Outstanding for following

As at March 31, 2022

periods from due date of Undisputed Undisputed Disputed Disputed Total

payment trade trade trade trade

receivables receivables receivables receivables

- considered - credit - considered - credit

good impared good impaired
Not due 1,565.03 - - - 1,565.03
Less than 6 months 226.00 - - - 226.00
6 months- 1 year 1.42 0.08 - - 1.50
1-2 Years - 2.13 - - 2.13
2-3 Years - - - - -
More than 3 years - 0.52 - 0.72 1.24
1,792.45 2.73 - 0.72 1,795.90

Outstanding for following As at March 31, 2021

periods from due date of Undisputed  Undisputed Disputed Disputed Total

payment trade trade trade trade

receivables receivables receivables receivables

- considered - credit - considered - credit

good impared good impaired
Not due 1,131.74 - - - 1,131.74
Less than 6 months 141.13 0.12 - - 141.25
6 months- 1 year 0.98 0.09 - - 1.07
1-2 Years 0.02 3.33 - - 3.35
2-3 Years - 0.18 - - 0.18
More than 3 years 0.69 0.56 - 0.75 2.00
1,274.56 4.28 - 0.75 1,279.59

The group has entered into receivables purchase agreements with banks to unconditionally and irrevocably sell,
transfer, assign and convey all the rights, titles and interest of the group in the receivables as identified. Receivables
sold as on March 31, 2022 are of ¥ 756.96 crores (Previous year: ¥ 369.12 Crores). The group has derecognized
these receivables as it has transferred its contractual rights to the banks with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and retains no control over these receivables as the banks have the right to further sell and transfer
these receivables with notice to the group.
During the previous year the group had sold, with recourse, trade receivables amounting to ¥ 47.15 Crores to a
bank for cash proceeds. These trade receivables were not derecognised because the group retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards, primarily credit risk. The amounts received on such transfer were recognised as a

secured bank loan (Refer note 18).

(v) There is no customer who represents more than 10% (Previous year - Nil) of the total balances of trade receivables.

(vi) Refer Note 18.1 for information on trade receivables pledged as security by the group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

Balances with banks

Current accounts 228.70 124.57
Exchange earners foreign currency (EEFC) accounts 20.97 12.83
Deposit accounts with maturity of three months or less* 200.00 0.09

Cash on hand 0.81 0.80

450.48 138.29

* Refer to note 18.
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15 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Earmarked balances

Bonus shares issued during the five years preceding the reporting date

*During the current year, Company has issued and allotted 236,980,820 fully paid up Bonus Equity shares
of ¥ 10 each in the ratio of 4:1 (i.e. 4 Bonus Equity shares for every 1 existing equity share of the Company)
to the shareholders who held shares on October 14, 2021 (Record date).

- Margin money 1.95 1.95 ) . . .
- Unclaimed dividend accounts 6.72 6.57 ** *During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had issued 1,764,705 fully paid up equity shares
Other deposit accounts equivalent to 3.07% of the existing paid up equity capital of the Company to Qualified Institutional Buyers
- Deposit accounts with maturity beyond three months 0.20 135.19 in accordance with SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. These shares
upto twelve months were issued at an issue price of ¥ 4,250 per share (including securities premium of ¥ 4,240 per share) for
8.87 143.71 an aggregate consideration of ¥ 750 Crores. The proceeds (net of share issue expenses of ¥ 11.99 Crores

charged off against securities premium) have been utilised for repayment of borrowings.
16 SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Authorised share capital:

The parent has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

320,000,000 (Previous Year - 120,000,000) Equity 320.00 120.00 The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
shares of 7 10 each the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the members, such interim
1,000,000 (Previous Year - 1,000,000) Preference 10.00 10.00 dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.
h f31 h
i ;5350%0 (Psé)vieoics Year - 1,200,000) Cumulative Preferences 6.00 6.00 During the year ended March 31, 2022, first interim dividend of ¥ 12 per share (before issue of bonus
sf,1areé of Z 50 each e ’ ' shares) and second interim dividend of ¥ 4.75 per share (post issue of bonus shares) were recognised as
Nil (Previous Year - 20,000,000) Cumulative Preferences ) 200.00 distributions to equity shareholders, aggregating ¥ 211.89 Crores (Previous year: % 24 per share before
shares of Z 100 each e ' issue of bonus shares, aggregating ¥ 141.31 Crores).
336.00 336.00 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Issued share capital:

to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

16.2 Details of equity shares held by the holding Company

300,477,780 (Previous Year - 63,301,960) Equity 300.48 63.30 Number of fully paid
Shares of ¥ 10 each ordinary shares
Subscribed cap|t_al: _ As at March 31, 2022
296,421,025 (Previous Year - 59,245,205) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 296.42 59.24 . L .
each fully paid up KAMA Holdings Limited, the Holding Company 15,02,45,000
Add: Forfeited shares - Amount originally paid up 1.02 1.02 As at March 31, 2021

297.44 60.26 KAMA Holdings Limited, the Holding Company 3,00,49,000

16.1 Fully paid equity shares 16.3 Details of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Number of shares Amount Class of shares / As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Balance at March 31, 2020 >,74,80,500 57.48 Name of shareholder Number of % holdingin  Number of % holding in
Add: Movement during the year** 17,64,705 1.76 shares held that class of shares held that class of
Balance at March 31, 2021 5,92,45,205 59.24 shares shares
Add: Movement during the year * (Also refer note 37 on 23,71,75,820 237.18 Fully paid equity shares
“Employee Share Based Payments’) 1. Kama Holdings Limited 15,02,45,000 50.69%  3,00,49,000 50.72%
Balance at March 31, 2022 29,64,21,025 296.42 - Kama Holdings Limite e, 0F70 0, e
2. Amansa Holding Private Limited 1,13,61,408 3.83% 33,73,411 5.69%

There are no buy back of equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the

reporting date.
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16.4 Details of equity shares held by Promoters

17

17.

Number of fully paid % holding in that % change
equity shares held class of shares during the year

Name of Promoter

As at March 31, 2022

1. KAMA Holdings Limited 15,02,45,000 50.69% 400%*
2. Mr. Arun Bharat Ram 1,37,500 0.05% 400%*
As at March 31, 2021

1. KAMA Holdings Limited 3,00,49,000 50.72% -
2. Mr. Arun Bharat Ram 27,500 0.05% -

* Also refer to note 16.1 above.

OTHER EQUITY
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
General reserve 648.77 648.77
Retained earnings 6,785.77 5,113.66
Cash flow hedging reserve 34.49 7.53
Cost of hedging reserve 0.51 3.13
Capital redemption reserve 10.48 10.48
Capital reserve 193.77 193.77
Debenture redemption reserve 62.50 62.50
Foreign currency translation reserve 23.07 21.77
Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income (4.22) (4.22)
Employee share based payment reserve 3.22 2.52
Securities premium 509.56 736.25
8,267.92 6,796.16

1 General reserve
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 648.77 573.77
Increase/(decrease) during the year - 75.00
Balance at end of year 648.77 648.77

The general reserve is created from time to time on transfer of profits from retained earnings. General reserve
is created by transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive
income. Items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.
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17.2 Retained earnings

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year 5,113.66 4,117.69

Profit for the year 1,888.92 1,197.94

Other comprehensive income arising from measurement of (4.92) 1.84
defined benefit obligation* (Refer note 36.2 (iv))

Payments of dividend on equity shares (211.89) (141.31)

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - (62.50)

Balance at end of year 6,785.77 5,113.66

The amount that can be distributed as dividend by the parent to its equity shareholders is determined
based on the separate financial statements of the parent company and also considering the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013.

* net of income tax of ¥ 2.55 crores. (Previous year: % (0.84) crores)

17.3 Cash flow hedging reserve

(Refer note 40.3.1 (C))

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year 7.53 (78.56)
Recognized/(released) during the year 39.99 132.33
Income tax related to above (13.03) (46.24)
Balance at end of year 34.49 7.53

The Cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on
changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges.
The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in the fair value of the designated portion of the hedging
instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve will be
reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a
basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item.

17.4 Cost of hedging reserve

(Refer note 40.3.1 (C)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year 3.13 -
Recognized/(released) during the year (2.17) 3.46
Income tax related to above (0.45) (0.33)
Balance at end of year 0.51 3.13

The cost of hedging reserve reflects gain or loss on the portion excluded from the designated hedging
instrument that relates to the forward element of forward contracts. It is initially recognised in other
comprehensive income and accounted for similarly to gains or losses in the cash flow hedging reserve.
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17.5 Capital redemption reserve 17.9 Foreign currency translation reserve
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 10.48 10.48 Balance at beginning of year 21.77 (14.67)
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations 1.30 36.44
Balance at end of year 10.48 10.48 Balance at end of year 23.07 21.77

Exchange differences relating to translation of the results and net assets of the group’s foreign operations from
their functional currency in to group presentation currency (i.e. ) are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income and accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve. Exchange differences previously
accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve in respect of foreign operations are reclassified to
statement of profit and loss on disposal of foreign operation.

Capital Redemption reserve is a statutory, non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred
following the redemption or purchase of a company‘s own shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with
the provision of the Act.

17.6 Capital reserve

March 31, 2;;; March 31, 2;;;_ 17.10 Employee share based payment reserve
- As at As at
Balance at beginning of }/ear 193.77 193.77 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - —
Balance at end of year 193.77 193.77 Balance at beginning of }/ear 2:52 1.56
Increase/(decrease) during the year 10.93 0.96
Capital reserve represents amounts received pursuant to Montreal Protocol Phase-out Programme of Released on vesting of shares issued under employee share (10.23) -
refrigerant gases. purchase scheme
Balance at end of year 3.22 2.52
17.7 Debenture redemption reserve
As at As at The group has allotted equity shares to certain employees under an employee share purchase scheme.
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 The share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share based payments
Balance at beginning of year 62.50 75.00 provided to the such employees as part of their remuneration. Refer note 37 for further details of the scheme.
Increase/(decrease) during the year - (75.00)
Transfer from retained earnings - 62.50 17.11 Securities premium
Balance at end of year 62.50 62.50 As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
The Company has issued non-convertible debentures. The Company had created debenture redemption Balance at beginning of year 736.25 -
reserve out of the profits of the company available for payment of dividend. Recognised on issue of equity shares - 736.25
17.8 Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income Ut|||sat|9n on 1ssue O.f bonus eqwty.shares (236.98) _
T e RE;:(c:)hgan;(see:Chznm\éest|ng of shares issued under employee share 10.29 -
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 galance at end of year 509.56 736.25
Balance at beginning of year (4.22) (4.22)
Increase/(decrease) during the year , - Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value upon issue of equity shares.
Balance at end of year (4.22) (4.22) The same may be, inter-alia, utilised for issue of fully paid bonus shares or for buy-back of equity shares by
. ) ) o ) o the Company, in accordance with the provisions of the Act. During the previous year, expenses amounting
This reserves r_epresents the cumulative gains aqd Igsses arising on the revaluatlc_)p of eqwty_/ mstrumgnts to ¥ 11.99 Crores incurred on issue of equity shares under Qualified Institutional Placement have been
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of amount reclassified to retained earnings charged off against securities premium. (Refer note 16.1).

when those assets have been disposed of.
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18 BORROWINGS 18.1 Details of security of the secured loans:
As at As at Details of Loan As at As at Security
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, March 31,
2022# 2021#
Non-current - -
S d 1. 2,500 (Previous Year: 2,500), 250.00 250.00 Debentures are secured by hypothecation of Company’s
ecure _ _ 3 Months T-Bill + 188 bps, moveable properties, both present and future, situated
2,500 Nos. (Previous Year: 2,500 Nos.), 3 Months T-Bill + 188 250.00 250.00 Listed, Sec_ured, Redeemable, at Manali, Viralimalai (other than moveable assets of
bps, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 't\lhoen;accoenzglr\tjglgf 1?)elgﬁﬂ§u£§§h*°f Coated Fabrics Business) and Gummidipoondi in the
of the face value of %10 lakhs each * (Refer note 18.1.1) State of Tamil Nadu, Jhiwana in the State of Rajasthan,
Term Loans from banks*” (Refer note 18.1.2) 2,106.42 1,978.95 Terms and conditions Malanpur and Special Economic Zone, Indore in the
Term Loans from others*(Refer note 18.1.3) 141.07 196.31 a) Redeemable at face value in LSJtate I:: Mdadhyr? Pr:desh, Ka;llupur in t:eL State 0(:
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (744.19) (460.25) one single instalment at the ttarakhand (other than moveable assets of Laminate
1.753.30 1.965.01 end of 2nd year from the Fabrics Business) and Dahej in the State of Gujarat
Current == == date of allotment. (excluding certain assets).
Secured b) Coupon is payable on a
Cash credits from banks (Refer note 18.1.4.(iii)) 1.90 0.44 quarterly basis every year.
Loans repayable on demand from banks (Refer note 191.93 297.71
18.1.4.((i) and (ii)) 2 (i) Term loan from Banks * 1,463.21  1,390.07 Moveable property
Bills discounted with banks (Refer note 18.1.4.(iv)) - 47.15 gai(gogugg the IO(ans as at 3(0, lozni gggrsgacting t<;
- . ,008. rores (Previous Year — % 1,099. rores
Current maturities of long term borrowings 744.19 460.25 are secured by hypothecation of Company’s moveable
938.02 805.55 properties, both present and future, situated at Manali,
Unsecured Viralimalai (other than moveable assets of Coated
Fabrics Business) and Gummidipoondi in the State
Loans repayable on demand from banks 548.03 520.40 of Tamil Nadu, Jhiwana in the State of Rajasthan,
Commercial papers from banks and others # 300.00 100.00 Malanpur and Special Economic Zone, Indore in the
848.03 620.40 State of Madhya Pradesh and Kashipur (other than
moveable assets of Laminated Fabrics Business) in the
1,786.05 1,425.95 State of Uttarakhand and Dahej in the State of Gujarat
. . ) (save and except certain assets).
* Above amount of borrowings are net of upfront fees paid ¥ 3.80 crores (Previous year: ¥ 5.02 Crores) ) ) )
A Out of a term loan of ¥ 227.91 Crores obtained towards the end of the current year, unutilised balance of ¥ 200 Crores (a)(ii) Out of the loans as at 2(i), loans aggregating
March 31. 2022 has b b iy i ted in fixed d it with a bank. Th h loan/ ti to ¥ 454.38 Crores (Previous Year — ¥ 290.77 Crores )
ar? on March 31, as been temporarily invested in fixed deposit with a bank. There was no such loan/amount in are in the process of being secured by hypothecation
the previous year. of Company’s moveable properties, both present
# The maximum amount due during the year is ¥ 500 crores (Previous year: ¥ 600 Crores) and future, situated at Manali, Viralimalai(other than
There have been no defaults in repayment of principal and interest on borrowings during the reporting moveable assets of Coated Fabrics Business) and
periods. Gummidipoondi in the State of Tamil Nadu, Jhiwana in
) . . . the State of Rajasthan, Malanpur and Special Economic
The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the Zone, Indore in the State of Madhya Pradesh and
books of account of the Company. Kashipur (other than moveable assets of Laminated

Fabrics Business) in the State of Uttarakhand and Dahej
in the State of Gujarat (save and except certain assets).
Immoveable property

(b)(i) Out of the loans as at 2(i) loans aggregating
to ¥ 516.71 Crores (Previous Year — ¥ 849.30 Crores)
are secured by equitable Mortgage of Company’s
immoveable properties, both present and future,
situated at Viralimalai, Gummidipoondi (freehold land)
in the State of Tamil Nadu and Kashipur in the State
of Uttarakhand.
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Details of Loan

As at As at
March 31, March 31,

Security

(ii) Term loans from banks

(iii) Term loans from banks

3 (i) Term loans from Others

(ii) Term loans from Others

4 (i) Loans repayable on
demand from banks

(ii) Loans repayable on
demand from banks

(iii) Cash credit from banks

(iv) Bills discounted with Banks

2022# 2021#
412.98 428.88
233.70 163.79
- 21.95
141.40 175.59
158.30 233.38
33.63 64.33
1.90 0.44

- 47.15

(b)(ii) Out of the loans as at 2(b)(i)) loans aggregating
to ¥ 289.09 Crores (Previous Year — ¥ 400.99 Crores)
are additionally secured by equitable Mortgage of
Company’s immoveable properties, both present and
future, situated at Jhiwana in the State of Rajasthan.

(b) (iii) Out of the loans as at 2(i), the term loans
aggregating to Nil (Previous Year — ¥ 38.50 Crores)
are to be further secured by equitable mortgage of
Company’s immoveable properties, both present and
future, situated at Jhiwana in the State of Rajasthan.

Term loan is secured by pledge of 85% of the share
capital of SRF Europe Kft held by SRF Global BV,
mortgage of land and building of SRF Europe Kft and
exclusive charge over the fixed assets of SRF Europe Kft.

Out of 2(iii), Term loan of ¥ 119.70 crores (previous
year % 163.79 crores) is secured by mortgage of existing
plant and machinery, land and building and/or any
construction in future of Packaging film Factory (SRF
Industries (Thailand) Ltd) and ¥ 114.00 crores is to be
charged against certain specific Plant and machinery of
Packaging film Factory (SRF Industries (Thailand) Ltd).

Term loan availed from International Finance
Corporation, Washington is secured by continuing
coverage mortgage bond over the land, special notarial
bond and general notarial bond over the property of
SRF Flexipak (South Africa) (Pty) Limited.

Loan of ¥ 141.40 Crores (Previous Year — ¥ 175.59
Crores) is secured by the hypothecation and equitable
mortgage of Company’s moveable and immoveable
properties at Dhar in the State of Madhya Pradesh.

Secured by hypothecation of stocks, stores and book
debts (current assets), both present and future at
Manali, Viralimalai (other than current assets of Coated
Fabrics Business) and Gummidipoondi in the State
of Tamil Nadu, Jhiwana in the State of Rajasthan,
Malanpur and Indore in the State of Madhya Pradesh
and Kashipur (other than current assets of Laminated
Fabrics Business) in the State of Uttarakhand.
Working capital facilities is secured by pledge of 85%
of the share capital of SRF Europe Kft held by SRF
Global BV and pledge over receivables arising out of
trade agreements

Working capital facilities availed by SRF Flexipak (South
Africa) (Pty) Ltd. are secured by cession of debtors and
limited cession and pledge of credit balances

Secured against certain trade receivables of the
Company. (Also Refer note 13 (iv))

* Such hypothecation in respect of Non convertible debentures mentioned in point no. 1 and hypothecation and
equitable mortgage mentioned in point no 2 rank pari-passu inter se between term loans from banks / Non convertible

debentures (both current year and previous year)
# Gross of upfront fees paid ¥ 3.80 Crores (Previous year - ¥ 5.02 Crores)
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18.2 Terms of loans

As at March 31, 2022
NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

Loan Category Frequency of Interest rate Up to Up to Up to From
principal March 31, March 31, March 31, 2026 to
repayments 2023 2024 2025 2027
Redeemable Redeemable at Floating rate at 5.63% 250.00 - - -
Non-Convertible  face value in one
Debentures Instalment at the
end of second year
Term Half Ranging
loans from banks yearly instalment from 1.23% to 2.35% 63.98 63.98 280.71 -
Quarterly Instalment Ranging
from 0.41% to 5.85% 383.11 348.96 287.38 439.57
Bullet payments Ranging
from 1.18% to 6.65% 15.00 - 227.19 -
Term Half year payments  Floating rate at 1.46% 40.38 40.38 40.38 20.27
loans from Others
752.47 453.32 835.66 459.84

Amounts mentioned above are gross of upfront fees paid of ¥ 3.80 crores

CURRENT BORROWINGS
Short term borrowings are either payable in instalments within one year or repayable on demand. For short
term borrowings, interest rates ranges from 0.26% to 7.50%

Loan Category Frequency of Interest rate Up to Up to Up to From
principal March 31, March 31, March 31, 2024 to
repayments 2022 2023 2024 2027
Redeemable Non- Redeemable at Floating rate at 5.23% - 250.00 - -
Convertible Debentures face value in one
Instalment at the
end of second year
Term loan from banks Half Ranging
yearly instalment from 1.23% to 7.85% 17.63 55.76 23.26  232.62
Quarterly Ranging
Instalment from 0.41% to 6.25% 379.83 398.00 309.90 544.75
Yearly payments Floating rate at 7.25% 4.00 1.00 1.00 -
Bullet payments Fixed rate at 6.65% - 15.00 - -
Term loan from others Half year payments Ranging
from 2.01% to 2.21% 60.95 39.00 39.00 58.58
462.41 758.76 373.16 835.95

Amounts mentioned above are gross of upfront fees paid of ¥ 5.02 Crores.

CURRENT BORROWINGS
Short term borrowings are either payable in instalments within one year or repayable on demand. For short
term borrowings, interest rates ranges from 0.30% to 7.50%
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Terms of repayment

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)

12)

13)
14)
15)
16)

17)

18)

Rupee term loans from banks of ¥ 38.50 Crores prepaid in current year (Previous year: ¥ 38.50 Crores
repayable in 3 half yearly instalments from August 2021).

Rupee term loans from banks of ¥ 8.22 Crores is repayable in 2 quarterly instalments from June 2022
(Previous year: % 24.66 Crores repayable in 6 quarterly instalments from June 2021)

Rupee term loans from banks of ¥ 6.00 Crores prepaid in current year (Previous year: ¥ 6.00 Crores
repayable in 3 annual instalments from December 2021).

Redeemable non convertible debenture of ¥ 250.00 Crores is repayable in one bullet instalment in
September 2022.(Previous year: ¥ 250 crores repayable in one bullet instalment in September 2022)

Rupee term loans from banks of ¥ 203.13 Crores is repayable in 13 quarterly instalments from
April 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 250 crores repayable in 16 quarterly instalments from July 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from banks of ¥ 23.67 Crores is repayable in 1 quarterly instalment in
June 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 114.30 Crores repayable in 5 quarterly instalments from June 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from banks of ¥ 265.87 Crores is repayable in 12 quarterly instalments from
May 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 361.33 Crores are repayable in 16 quarterly instalments from May 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from banks of ¥ 94.66 Crores is repayable in 7 quarterly instalments from
April 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 143.69 Crores are repayable in 11 quarterly instalments from April 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from others of ¥ 141.40 Crores is repayable in 7 half yearly instalments from
April 2022 (Previous year: % 175.59 Crores are repayable in 9 half yearly instalments from April 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from banks of ¥ 15.00 Crores is repayable in one bullet instalment in
June 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 15.00 Crores is repayable in one bullet instalment in June 2022).

Foreign currency term loan from banks of ¥ 109.29 Crores is repayable in 5 quarterly instalments from
April 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 145.82 Crores are repayable in 9 quarterly instalments from April 2021)

Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 288.99 Crores is repayable in 4 half yearly instalments from
September 2022 and then 12 monthly instalments from April 2024 onwards (Previous year: ¥ 290.77
Crores repayable in 5 half yearly instalments from March 2022 and then 12 monthly instalments from
April 2024 onwards).

Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 227.19 Crores is repayable in one bullet instalment in
March 2025 (Previous year: Nil)
Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 227.19 Crores is repayable in 17 quarterly instalments from
March 2023 (Previous year: Nil)

Foreign currency term loan from others of ¥ 21.95 Crores repaid in current year (Previous year:
% 21.95 Crores are repayable in 2 half yearly instalments from May 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 412.98 Crores is repayable in 19 quarterly instalments from
June 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 428.88 Crores are repayable in 20 quarterly instalments from March 2022).

Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 119.70 Crores is repayable in 6 half yearly instalments
from September 2022 (Previous year: ¥ 163.79 Crores are repayable in 8 half yearly instalments from
September 2021).

Foreign currency term loan from bank of ¥ 114.00 Crores is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments from
October 2022 (Previous year: Nil)
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19

20

(M

PROVISIONS

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absence (Refer note 36.3) 46.08 39.24
Provision for retention pay (Refer note 36.3) 0.17 0.17
Other employee benefits 5.33 4.14
51.58 43.55
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absence (Refer note 36.3) 7.38 8.68
7.38 8.68
TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises*

- Acceptances* 3.61 -
- Other than acceptances 52.37 33.37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
- Acceptances* 410.27 139.97
- Other than acceptances 1,630.10 1,411.85
2,096.35 1,585.19
# Refer to note 20.1
* Acceptances represents invoices discounted by vendors with banks
Ageing of trade payables:
Outstanding for As at March 31, 2022
following periods from Dues of Dues of Disputed dues of Disputed dues Total
due date of payment micro  creditors other micro enterprises of creditors
enterprises than micro and small other than micro
and small enterprises and enterprises enterprises and
enterprises small enterprises small enterprises
Not due 55.98 1,743.01 - - 1,798.99
Less than one year - 97.11 - - 97.11
1-2 Years - 3.13 - - 3.13
2-3 Years - - - - -
More than 3 years - 0.13 - - 0.13
Unbilled dues - 196.99 - - 196.99
55.98 2,040.37 - - 2,096.35
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Outstanding for As at March 31, 2021 21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
following periods from Dues of Dues of Disputed dues of Disputed dues Total As at As at
due date of payment micro  creditors other micro enterprises of creditors March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
enterprises than micro and small other than micro
and small enterprises and enterprises  enterprises and Non-Current
enterprises small enterprises small enterprises Derivatives carried atfair valuethrough other comprehensiveincome
Unbilled dues i 144.40 i - e - Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 0.33 -
Not due 33.37 1,287.92 - - 1,321.29 .
Less than one year ) 113.78 ) ) 113.78 - Interest rate swaps used for hedging - 0.54
1-2 Years - 3.81 - - 3.81 Payables to capital creditors
2-3 Years - - - - - - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
More than 3 years - 1.91 - - 1.91 enterprises and small enterprises
33.37 1,551.82 - - 1,585.19 Acceptances* 153.53 i
153.86 0.54

20.1 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Trade Payables include the following dues to micro and small enterprises covered under “The Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” (MSMED) to the extent such parties have been identified

*Acceptances represent amount payable under letter of credit arrangements with the vendor/banks

from the available information. Current
As at As at Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 4.47 5.79
Unpaid dividends”™ 6.72 6.57

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Security deposits received 8.15 8.63
Payables to capital creditors
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED (suppliers)
as at the end of year

- Principal amount ** 108.82 52.02 .
small enterprises*
- Interest due thereon - -
A t of t det liers b dth inted d Acceptances* 10.56 -
dmpuntk:) payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day Other than acceptances 42.28 18.65
uring the year - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 276.66 349.46

- Principal amount - -

. . enterprises and small enterprises
- Interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED /settled - -

Derivatives carried atfairvalue through other comprehensiveincome

Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which - - - Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 5.03 -
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but Others 17.83 43.19
without adding interest under MSMED 371.70 432.29

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest accrued during the year - -
- Interest remaining unpaid as at the end of the year - -

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues are actually paid, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

** including payable to micro enterprise and small enterprise included in other financial liabilities (refer note 21)
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~ Amount will be credited to investor education and protection fund if not claimed within seven years from the date of
declaration of dividend.

# Refer note 20.1
* Acceptances represent invoices discounted by vendors with banks.

22 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non - Current tax assets

Advance tax (net of provision for tax) 21.31 33.74
Current tax liablities
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 14.20 12.49
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23 OTHER LIABILITIES 25 OTHER INCOME*
As at As at Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current Interest Income
Deferred government grants * 39.56 42.77 - from customers 0.01 0.01
39.56 42.77 - on loans, deposits and investments 20.51 1.22
Current - on others 3.47 7.80
Contract liability (Refer note 41) 28.32 18.40 Net gain on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment 2.90 0.39
Statutory liabilities 60.95 38.07 Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through 7.06 25.45
Payable to gratuity trust (Refer note 36.2) 11.57 4,52 profit and loss
Deferred government grants* 1.77 - Net foreign currency exchange fluctuation gains 72.71 11.86
Other payables 41.36 31.74 Provision / liabilities no longer required written back 3.66 11.49
143.97 92.73 Other non-operating income 5.19 8.13
115.51 66.35
* The group had received financial assistance in earlier year from: % Refer Note 42 B
- The Industrial Development Corporation of South Africa towards setting up of property, plant and equipment under
a government program; and 26.1COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED*
- Ministry of Foreign Affair and Trade, Hungary under the governments’ “Scheme for Investment Promotion” to Year ended Year ended
promote investment and job creation. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
The unamortised grant amount as on March 31, 2022 is ¥ 41.33 crores (Previous year: ¥ 42.77 crores). Opening stock of raw materials 683.36 512.59
Add: Purchases of raw materials 6,545.92 4,198.45
24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS* 7,229.28 4,711.04
Year ended Year ended Less: Closing stock of raw materials 1,058.18 683.36
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Cost of materials consumed* 6,171.10 4,027.68
Sale of products * Including packing material
Manufactured goods 12,138.37 8,214.10
Traded goods 174.38 81.30 26.2 PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE*
12,312.75 8,295.40 Year ended Year ended
Other operating revenues March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Claims 0.01 0.52 Purchase of stock in trade » 175.59 62.92
Export and other incentives 49.47 70.65 175.59 62.92
Scrap sales 48.11 29.98 * Refer Note 42 B
Other operating income 23.32 3.49 A includes amount of ¥15.71 crores acquired through Business Combination (Refer note 46 below)
120.91 104.64
12,433.66 8,400.04 26.3 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE*

Year ended Year ended

Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with the contracted price March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{4 14

Year ended Year ended Inventories at the end of the year:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Stock-in-Process 237.41 176.47
Contracted price 12,421.10 8,438.70 Finished goods 535.44 338.59
Less: Discounts, allowances and claims (108.35) (143.30) Traded goods 27.39 4.32
Sale of products 12,312.75 8,295.40 800.24 519.38

* Refer Note 42 B
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Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

29 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE*

STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Effect of changes in exchange currency rates

Stock-in-Process (0.46) 0.56
Finished goods 0.82 2.47
Traded goods 0.75 -
1.11 3.03
Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Stock-in-Process 176.47 156.45
Finished goods 338.59 281.24
Traded goods 4.32 7.02
519.38 444.71
Net (increase) / decrease (279.75) (71.66)

* Refer Note 42 B

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE*

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and wages, including bonus 618.82 515.89
Contribution to provident and other funds 45.46 40.89
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 87.11 63.66
Share based payment expense (Refer note 37) 28.61 0.96
780.00 621.40

* Refer Note 42 B

28 FINANCE COST

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest cost

- Non-convertible debentures 13.23 12.27

- Term loans and others 61.74 99.46

- Lease liabilities 8.69 6.49
Other borrowing costs 17.86 14.95
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs 14.41 0.78
115.93 133.95

A pertains to liabilities measured at amortised cost.
* Refer Note 42 B
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 484.64 426.78
Amortisation of intangible assets 8.16 8.24
Depreciation of Right of use assets 24.43 18.06
517.23 453.08
* Refer Note 42 B
30 OTHER EXPENSES*
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Credit impaired assets provided / written off 0.95 11.94
Labour production 70.63 52.44
Directors' sitting fees 0.66 0.29
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility** 19.06 12.88
Property, plant and equipment provided/ written off » 11.48 1.37
Freight charges 547.78 302.06
Insurance 47.66 39.57
Power and fuel 1,135.56 717.34
Legal and professional charges 40.98 33.10
Rates and taxes 19.76 9.91
Rent*** 30.36 17.92
Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings 9.11 5.38
- Plant and machinery 201.53 162.42
- Other maintenance 43.23 37.34
Selling commission 35.73 26.83
Stores and spares consumed 81.80 66.54
Travelling and conveyance 12.48 5.84
Auditor remuneration? ****
- Audit Fees 1.52 1.52
- For limited review of unaudited financial results 0.97 0.94
- For Corporate governance, consolidated financial statements 0.10 0.22
and other certificates
- For tax audit 0.08 0.08
- Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.15 0.08
Effluent disposal expenses 121.99 77.10
Miscellaneous expenses 49.95 43.26
2,483.52 1,626.37

* Refer Note 42 B

** Refer to note- 47(d)

*** Refer to note- 43

# including fees paid to auditors of subsidiary companies

~ including amount of ¥ 5.75 crores (previous year: Nil) recognised on fair valuation of assets classified as held for sale.

Also Refer note 42 C.

**kxx Excluding fees Nil (Previous year: ¥ 0.43 Crore) for QIP related attestation and certification, netted off from

securities premium.
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31 INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT AND LOSS

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tax expense related to continuing operations 696.63 414.40
Tax expense related to discontinued operations - (2.42)
696.63 411.98
(a) Tax expense related to continuing operations
Current tax
In relation to current year 657.53 357.97
Adjustment in relation to earlier years - 0.02
657.53 357.99
Deferred tax
- MAT credit entitlement
In relation to current year - -
Adjustment in relation to earlier years (25.27) (5.38)
(25.27) (5.38)
- Others
In relation to current year 56.41 57.44
Adjustment in relation to earlier years 7.96 4.35
64.37 61.79
(b) Tax expense related to discontinued operations
Deferred tax
- Others
In relation to current year - (0.28)
Adjustment in relation to earlier years - (2.14)
- (2.42)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profits as follows:

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit before tax

From continuing operations 2,585.55 1,612.65
From discontinued operations - (2.73)
Total Profit before tax 2,585.55 1,609.92
Income Tax Expenses @ 34.944% (Previous year @ 34.944%) 903.50 562.57
Effect of deductions (research and development, share issue (79.28) (54.59)
expenses and deductions under Chapter - VIA of Income Tax Act)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining 13.28 5.48

taxable profits
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32

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Effect of re-measurement of deferred tax balances / lower tax rate (21.59) (22.73)
on certain temporary differences pursuant to Section 115BAA of
Income tax act.
Effect of Nil tax/exemption of overseas subsidiaries (34.13) (40.05)
Effect of additional expenses deductible in subsidiaries (6.89) -
Effect of lower tax rates in overseas subsidiaries (61.82) (40.14)
Others 0.88 2.45
Income tax expenses recognised in profit and loss in 713.94 412,99
relation to current year
Income tax expenses recognised in profit and loss in relation to (17.31) (1.01)
earlier years (Refer note (ii) below)
Total Income tax expenses recognised in profit and loss 696.63 411.98

Notes:

(i) The tax rate used for the current year reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% (2021: 34.944%)

payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

(i) Income tax in relation to earlier years includes tax credit of ¥ 15.42 Crores (Previous year: tax expense of ¥ 1.62
Crores) which is related to finalization and determination of deduction/allowance claimed for earlier years under
Chapter-VIA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, for generation of power from captive power plants which is based on

finalization of transfer pricing study /tax audit reports of the previous years.

INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Arising on income and expense recognised in other
comprehensive income

Net (gain)/ loss on designated portion of hedging instruments in (13.03) (46.24)

cash flow hedges

Cost of hedging reserve (0.45) (0.33)

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 2.55 (0.84)
(10.93) (47.41)

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other

comprehensive income into:

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (13.48) (46.57)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2.55 (0.84)
(10.93) (47.41)
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Claims against the group not acknowledged as debts: (i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 960.57 751.56
Goods and Services tax, excise duty, custom duty 8.39 23.11 capital account and not provided for (net of advances)
and service tax * (ii) The group has other commitments, for purchases / sales orders which are issued after considering
Sales tax and entry tax ** 19.17 20.38 requirements per operating cycle for purchase / sale of goods and services, employee benefits
Income Tax (Also refer note b (ii) and b (iii) below)*** 22.26 3.74 including union agreements in normal course of business. The group does not have any long term
Otherg**** 11.27 13.19

contracts including derivative contracts for which there will be any material foreseeable losses which
have not been provided for.

** Amount deposited against contingent liability ¥ 6.74 Crores (Previous year: ¥ 7.59 Crores) (iii) Export obligation under advance license scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials,

* Amount deposited against contingent liability ¥ 1.23 Crores (Previous year: ¥ 1.79 Crores)

***x Amount deposited against contingent liability ¥ 2.98 Crores (Previous year: ¥ 3.09 Crores)
k% Amount deposited against contingent liability ¥ 0.42 Crore (Previous year: % 0.40 Crore)
**x* Includes demand by Madhya Pradesh Paschim Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Ltd. (MPPKVV Ltd) of ¥ 8.12 Crores

(Previous year: ¥ 11.40 Crores).

All the above matters are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
the management, the legal proceedings, when ultimately concluded, will not have a material effect on the
results of the operations or financial position of the group.

remaining outstanding is ¥ 721.78 crores (Previous year: ¥ 619.36 crores).

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35.1 Description of related parties under Ind AS- 24 * Related party disclosures ™

Ultimate Holding Entity
ABR Family Trust

Key management personnel (KMP) #
Arun Bharat Ram**
Ashish Bharat Ram

b. (i) T:e C;)CrlnpanyI has been/ served dwith/show cause/notic(;as reé;arding certain transactions as to Holding Company Kartik Bharat Ram
why additional customs / excise duty / service tax / goods and service tax amounting to % 18.86 . . .
Crores (Previous year: ¥ 18.58 Crores) should not be levied. The Company has been advised KAMA Holdings Limited Tejpreet S Chopra'
that the contention of the department is not tenable and hence the show cause notice may not Lakshman Lakshminarayan
be sustainable. Fellow subsidiaries # Vellayan Subbiah
(i) The Company has received a notice for assessment year 2018-19 on April 13, 2022 on account KAMA Realty (Delhi) Limited Meenakshi Gopinath*
of non deduction of TDS on foreign payments involving an amoynt of % 1f1.34 Crores. Based on Shri Educare Limited Pramod Gopaldas Gujarathi
thg facts of the case gnd Company; assessment, the Company is of the view that the proposed SRF Transnational Holding Limited Bharti Gupta Ramola
adjustments are not likely to sustain.
. . ) Yash Gupta
(ii) Besides the above, the Company has received final assessment orders for assessment years Post I t benefit bl trust # p t Yadu Dalmi
2017-18 and 2018-19 on April 30,2022 in which adjustments amounting to  277.31 Crores and ost employment benelit plans trus uneet Yadu baimia
% 323.09 Crores respectively were made on account of transfer pricing adjustments, research SRF Limited Officers Provident Fund Trust
and development expenditure and others etc.(in line with earlier years) and a demand of ¥ 1.20 SRF Employees Gratuity Trust Enterprises over which KMP have
Cror_es a_md 96.71 Crore_s respectlvel_y has been raised. The Compapy plans to file re_ctlﬁcat_lon SRF Officers Gratuity Trust significant influence #
application towards certain computation errors and for rest of the issues, appeal will be filed SRF Foundation
before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. Based on the facts of the case and the management'’s SRE Welfare Ti
assessment, the Company is of the view that the proposed adjustments are not likely to sustain. elfare Trust
) . . . . Relatives of KMP # BLP Industry AI Private Limited
c. The amounts shown above represents the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available )
information. The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are dependent on the outcome of the Sushil Ramola
different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants as the case may Murugappan Vellayan Subbiah Relatives of KMP of Holding Company #
be and therefore cannot be predicted accurately or relate to a present obligations that arise from Nirmala Kothari
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate cannot be made.
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

KMP of Holding Company #
Ekta Maheshwari
Jagdeep Singh Rikhy ***

Enterprises over which relative of
KMP has control #

Murugappa & Sons

Employee benefit obligations transferred to

Holding Company - 0.02
# Only with whom the Company had transactions during the year Fellow Subsidiaries 0.20 -
* Upto August 31, 2021 Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence * *
** Upto March 31, 2022 0.20 0.02

*** From December 03, 2021
! * Amount in absolute Nil (Previous year: ¥ 25,962)

35.2 Transactions with related parties Equity dividend paid

Mar;fg;,,e;g;g Mar!;g;?;g;g Holding Company 107.43 72.12
Sale of property, plant & equipmentand intangible assets to Key management personnel 0.15 0.12
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.19 - Relatives of KMP 0.1 0.07
0.19 - KMP of Holding Company AN AN
Sale of goods to Relatives of KMP of Holding Company A A
Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence 0.04 - Enterprises over which relative of KMP has control AAN AAN
0.04 - 107.69 72.31
Rent paid ~ Amount in absolute ¥ 358 (Previous year: 3240)
Fellow Subsidiaries 6.60 6.60 AN Amount in absolute ¥ 1,095 (Previous year: ¥ 168)
Key management personnel 0.26 0.27 AN Amount in absolute % 36,966 (Previous year: 3 24,618)
Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence 0.27 0.27 Bonus shares issued
7.13 7.14 Holding Company (No. of shares: 120,196,000; previous - -
Reimbursement of expenses from year: Nil )
Holding Company 0.01 0.01 Key management personnel (No. of shares:178,968; previous - -
Fellow Subsidiaries 0.04 0.05 year: Nil)
0.05 0.06 Relatives of KMP (No. of shares: 110,388; previous year: Nil) - -
Receiving of Services from: KMP of Holding Company (No. of shares: 76; previous year: Nil) - -
Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence 0.19 0.07 Relatives of KMP of Holding Company (No. of shares: 40; - -
0.19 0.07 previous year: Nil)
Deposits received back from Enterprises over which relative of KMP has control (No. - -
Key management personnel 0.01 - of shares: 4,136; previous year: Nil)
0.01 - - -
Contribution for expenditure on corporate
social responsibility
Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence 21.38 9.18
21.38 9.18
Contribution to post employment benefit plans
Post employment benefit plans trust 30.20 35.41
30.20 35.41
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35.3 Outstanding Balances:

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Commission payable

Key management personnel 18.90 12.84
18.90 12.84
Receivable
Post employment benefit plans trust 11.48 1.49
11.48 1.49
Payable
Post employment benefit plans trust 13.30 6.02
13.30 6.02
Security deposits outstanding
Fellow Subsidiaries 3.27 3.27
Key management personnel 0.12 0.13
Enterprises over which KMP have significant influence 0.14 0.14
3.53 3.54
35.4 Key management personnel compensation
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Short-term benefits * 34.88 26.21
Post-employment benefits 2.15 1.44
Other long-term benefits 1.19 0.97
38.22 28.62
* Includes sitting fees and commission paid/ payable to non executive directors
36 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
36.1 Defined contribution plans:
Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss are as under:
Indian entities Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Superannuation fund (Refer to note (i) below) 0.59 0.61
Provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund 15.11 14.02
Commissioner (Refer to note (ii) below
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation 0.40 0.43
National Pension Scheme 1.71 1.34
17.81 16.40
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Foreign subsidiaries Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Contribution to provident fund 1.47 1.21
Skill, development and Social Security Fund 4.87 3.10
Pension fund 1.63 1.53
7.97 5.84

The expenses incurred on account of the above defined contribution plans have been included in Note 27
“Employee Benefits Expenses” under the head “Contribution to provident and other funds.”

®

(i)

Superannuation fund

The Company makes contributions to a Trust which in turn contributes to ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company Limited. Apart from being covered under the Gratuity Plan described below, the employees
of the Company also participate in a defined contribution superannuation plan maintained by the
Company. The Company has no further obligations under the plan except making annual contributions
based on a specified percentage of each covered employee’s salary. From November 1, 2006, the
Company provided an option to the employees to receive the said benefit as cash compensation along
with salary in lieu of the superannuation benefit. Thus, no contribution is required to be made for the
category of employees who opted to receive the benefit in cash.

Provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

All employees are entitled to Provident Fund benefits as per the law. For certain category of employees
the group administers the benefits through a recognized Provident Fund Trust. For other employees
contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioners . The Government mandates
the annual yield to be provided to the employees on their corpus. This plan is considered as a Defined
Contribution Plan. For the first category of employees (covered by the Trust), the group has an
obligation to make good for the shortfall, if any, between the yield on the investments of the trust and
the yield mandated by the Government and these are considered as Defined Benefit Plans and are
accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

36.2 Defined benefit plans
The group sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees. The defined benefit plans are
administered by separate funds which are legally separate from the group. These plans are:

(a)
(b)
(0
®

Gratuity
Provident fund for certain category of employees administered through a recognised provident fund trust
Legal Severance pay & Health care (Unfunded) as applicable with respect to foreign entities

These plans typically expose the company to actuarial risks such as investment risk,
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment Risk
The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any
particular investment.
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(i)

Salary Risk

The present value of defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
plan participants in future. Deviation in rate of increase in salary in future for plan participants from
the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on
the plan’s liability.

Interest Risk

The plan exposes the group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of the providing the above benefits and will thus result an increase in
value of the liability.

Longevity Risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of the plan participants both during and after the employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The principal assumption used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:
Indian entities As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Gratuity Provident Fund Gratuity Provident Fund
Discount Rate 7.16% 7.16% 6.69% 6.69%
Expected statutory interest rate - 8.10% - 8.50%
Salary increase 8.00% - 7.00% -
Retirement Age (years) 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00
Mortality Rates IALM IALM IALM IALM
(2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate
Upto 30 years 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%
31 to 44 years 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Above 44 years 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Foreign subsidiaries Legal Severance Pay (unfunded)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount Rate 3.18% 2.70%

Salary increase 6.35% 6.25%

In service mortality T™MO T™MO

2017 2017

Retirement Age 55 55
Withdrawal Rate

- up to 20 years 16% 15%

- 21-30 16% 15%

- 31-40 7% 8%

- 41-50 3% 3%

- 51 onwards 2% 2%
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The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuations involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rate. Due to these complexity involved in the valuation it is highly sensitive to
the changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The present value of defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service
cost were measured using projected unit credit method.

(iii) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these benefit plans are

as follows:
Indian entities Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Gratuity Provident Fund Gratuity Provident Fund
Current Service cost 9.09 7.73 8.03 6.75
Interest expenses (net 0.30 - 1.07 -
of expected return
on plan assets)

9.39 7.73 9.10 6.75

Foreign subsidiaries Legal Severance Pay (unfunded)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current/past Service cost 1.10 0.93
Net interest expenses 0.12 0.06
1.22 0.99

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in Note 27 “Employee
Benefits Expenses” under the head Contribution to provident and other funds

(iv) Amount recognized in other comprehensive income:

Indian entities Gratuity
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial (gain)/losses on plan assets (0.31) (5.84)
Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in 3.71 0.49
financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in 3.90 2.94

experience adjustments

7.30 (2.41)
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Foreign subsidiaries

Legal Severance Pay (unfunded)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in (0.23) (0.37)
financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in experience 0.40 0.10
adjustments and demographic assumption
0.17 (0.27)

(v) The amount included in consolidated balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Indian entities

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Gratuity Provident Fund

Gratuity Provident Fund

Present value of funded 107.45 155.50 98.72 158.91
defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets 95.88 157.64 94.20 157.71
Surplus/ (Deficit) (11.57) 2.14 (4.52) (1.20)
Effect of asset ceiling, if any - (2.14) - -
Net assets / (liability) (11.57) - (4.52) (1.20)

Foreign subsidiaries

Legal Severance Pay (unfunded)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation 5.33 4.14
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net asset / (liability) (5.33) (4.14)

(vi) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Indian entities

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Gratuity Provident Fund

Gratuity Provident Fund

Opening defined 98.72 158.91 85.78 137.01
benefit obligation

Current Service Cost 9.09 7.73 8.03 6.75
Interest Cost 6.60 12.42 5.81 11.92
Actuarial (gain)/losses 3.71 - 0.49 -
arising from changes in

financial assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/losses 3.90 - 2.94 -
arising from changes in

experience adjustments

Benefits paid (14.57) (39.82) (4.33) (8.73)
Contribution by plan - 12.72 - 10.83
participants / employees

Settlement / transfer in - 3.54 - 1.13
Closing defined 107.45 155.50 98.72 158.91

benefit obligation
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Foreign subsidiaries

Legal Severance Pay (unfunded)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit obligation 4.14 3.99

Current Service Cost 1.10 0.93

Interest Cost 0.12 0.06

Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in (0.23) (0.37)

financial assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in experience 0.40 0.10

adjustments and demographic assumption

Exchange difference on foreign plans (0.10) 0.07

Benefits paid/Settled (0.10) (0.64)

Closing defined benefit obligation 5.33 4.14
(vii)Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Indian entities As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Gratuity Provident Fund Gratuity Provident Fund
Opening fair 94.20 157.71 69.96 136.55
value of plan assets
Return on plan assets 6.62 15.76 10.58 11.18
(excluding amounts included in
net interest expenses)
Contributions from employer 9.63 7.73 17.99 6.75
Contributions from - 12.72 - 10.83
plan participants
Benefits paid (14.57) (39.82) (4.33) (8.73)
Settlement/ transfer in - 3.54 - 1.13
Closing fair 95.88 157.64 94.20 157.71

value of plan assets

Gratuity:

Plan assets comprises primarily of investment in HDFC Group Unit Linked Plan fund. The average
duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9.12 years (Previous year: 9.14 years). The Company
expects to make a contribution of ¥ 10.58 Crores (Previous year: ¥ 8.76 Crores) to the defined benefit

plans during the next financial year.

Provident fund:

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds.
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(viii) Sensitivity Analysis 37 EMPLOYEE SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and The Company has an Employee Share Purchase Scheme (SRF Long Term Share Based Incentive Plan)
expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably to provide equity settled share based payments to eligible employees. The expenses related to the grant
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding of shares under the Scheme are accounted for on the basis of fair value of the share on the grant date
all other assumptions constant. (which is the market price of the Company’s share on the date of grant less exercise price). The fair value
Indian entities Year ended ] SO determ|n.ed is .expensed on a straight line basis over the remaining tenure over which the employees
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 renders their services.
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

The movement of number of equity shares granted, their fair value and the share based payment expense

increase decrease increase decrease . )
—— recognised during the year are as under:
Sensitivity
analysis of gratuity Year ended Year ended
Discount rate (3.54) 3.77 (3.00) 3.20 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expected salary growth 3.72 (3.53) 3.17 (3.01) Number of equity shares:
Sensitivity analysis (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01 (i) At the beginning of the year 60,000 60,000
of Provident Fund (i) Impact of bonus issue of shares (Refer to note 16.1) 2,40,000 -
(i) Granted during the year * 1,95,000 -
Foreign subsidiaries Year ended Year ended (iv) Released during the year ~ (3,00,000) -
o kel 31'0/2:22 o Slaneh 31'0/2‘:’21 (V) At the end of the year 1,95,000 60,000
o Increase o decrease o Increase o decrease Market price on the grant date (% per equity share) 2,126.05 -
Sensitivity analysis of Exerci ice (2 ity sh 10.00 )
Legal Severance Pay x'erC|se price (R per equity share) . .
Discount rate (0.54) 0.63 (0.44) 0.52 Fair value of share based payment (X per equity share) 2,116.05 -
i i A XX
Expected salary growth 0.59 (0.51) 0.48 (0.42) Share based payment expense recognised during the year 28.61 0.96

. . . o . * These shares have a lock in period up to November 30, 2022 and are pledged for a period up to October 31, 2026.
Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are insignificant and hence ignored

A During the current year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based upon the recommendations of the
. management, released 300,000 equity shares from pledge, resulting into immediate vesting of these shares. As a
36.3 Other long-term employee benefit result, an additional amount of  6.72 crores has been recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in note 27 "Employee henefits expenses” under the ** Includes amount of ¥17.50 Crores (previous year -Nil) towards withholding tax on equity shares granted under

head “Salaries and wages, including bonus” the above scheme.

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Long term retention pay (refer to note (i) below) - -
Compensated absences 12.26 11.57
12.26 11.57

(i) Long Term Retention Pay
The group has a Long Term Retention Pay Plan which covers employees selected on the basis of
their current band and their long term value to the Company. The incentive is payable in three year
blocks subject to achievement of certain performance ratings. The Company also has a scheme for
talent retention of certain identified employees under which an incentive is payable over a period
of three years.
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38 SEGMENT REPORTING
Based on the guiding principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 108 “Segment Reporting”,
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance, the business of the Group is
segregated in the segments below:

Technical Textiles business: includes nylon tyre cord fabric, belting fabric, polyester tyre cord fabric
and industrial yarns and its research and development

Chemicals business: includes refrigerant gases, industrial chemicals, speciality chemicals,
fluorochemicals & allied products and its research and development.

Packaging Film business: includes polyester films and polypropylene films.

Others: include coated fabric, laminated fabric and other ancillary activities

Segment revenue, results and capital employed include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the
segments. Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided to the
segments, which are not directly identifiable.

In addition to the significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments as set out in note 1
above, the accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

a)

b)

Segment revenue and expenses

Joint revenue and expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis. All other
segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segments. These amounts relate to
continuing operations, unless otherwise stated. (Refer to note 42 with regard to information in relation
to discontinued operations).

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating
cash, trade receivables, inventories and property plant and equipment and intangible assets, net of
allowances and provisions, which are reported as direct offsets in the consolidated balance sheet.
Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued
liabilities and do not include deferred income taxes. While most of the assets / liabilities can be directly
attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets / liabilities pertaining to two
or more segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.
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A.

Information about operating business segments

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Segment revenue
a) Technical textiles business (TTB)

- External sales 2,073.33 1,231.41

- Inter-segment sales 11.91 8.70
Total 2,085.24 1,240.11
b) Chemicals business (CB)

- External sales 5,240.78 3,644.89

- Inter-segment sales - -
Total 5,240.78 3,644.89
c) Packaging films business (PFB)

- External sales 4,779.21 3,291.72

- Inter-segment sales - -
Total 4,779.21 3,291.72
d) Others

- External sales 340.34 232.02

- Inter-segment sales - -
Total 340.34 232.02
Total segment revenue 12,445.57 8,408.74
Less: Inter segment revenue 11.91 8.70
Revenue from operations 12,433.66 8,400.04
Add: Unallocable income 115.51 66.35
Total revenue 12,549.17 8,466.39
Segment profits
Profit before interest and tax from each segment
a) Technical textiles business (TTB) 471.43 176.90
b) Chemicals business (CB) 1,396.91 728.14
c) Packaging films business (PFB) 946.33 897.87
d) Others 20.35 25.59
Total segment results 2,835.02 1,828.50
Less: i) Interest and finance Charges 115.93 133.95
Less: ii) Other unallocable expenses net of income 133.54 81.90
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,585.55 1,612.65
(Loss) / Profit before tax from discontinuing operations - (2.73)
(Refer note 42)
Total Profit before tax 2,585.55 1,609.92
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Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Capital expenditure
a) Technical textiles business (TTB)

63.43

77.90

B. Information about geographical business segments

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations

_ _ - India 5,259.57 3,640.40
b) Chemicals business (CB) 1,296.56 618.66 - South Africa 603.51 475.37
c) Packaging films business (PFB) 637.06 553.34 - Singapore 43.14 5.47
d) Others 1.66 1.92 - Germany 462.74 476.58
- USA 1,440.87 576.20
€) Unallocated 8.3 313 - Thailand 353.74 188.89
Total 2,007.09 1,254.95 - Hungary 27.66 13.61
Depreciation and amortisation - Switzerland 827.37 687.75
a) Technical textiles business (TTB) 39.97 35.41 - Belgium 528.32 635.51
. . - Others 2,886.74 1,700.26
b) Chemlc-als t?usmess -(CB) 303.59 273.09 12,433.66 8,400.04
c) Packaging films business (PFB) 153.31 123.61
d) Others 7.53 8.06 Year ended Year ended
e) Unallocated 12.83 12.91 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total 517.23 453.08 Non current segment assets
- Within India 7,938.51 6,505.08
Segment assets and liabilities - Outside India 2,391.47 2,338.23
10,329.98 8,843.31
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Segment assets

Non current segment assets includes property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, capital work in
progress, intangible assets, Goodwill and other non current assets.

a) Technical textiles business (TTB) 1,818.01 1,582.16

b) Chemicals business (CB) 7193.65 5,741.97 No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both financial years 2021-22

c) Packaging films business (PFB) 5,633.10 4,543.33 and 2020_2:' 5 o ed
Reven rom major pr Year en Year en

d) Others 174.94 171.97 svenfietre or products Marchegl,e 2022 Marchegl,e 20;1

Total 14,819.70 12,039.43 a) Technical textiles business (TTB)

Unallocable assets 923.91 889.98 Nylon tyre cord fabric/ Polyester tyre cord fabric / Belting fabric 1,880.90 1,122.94

Assets classified as held for sale 3.00 - Synthetic filament yarn including Industrial yarn /Twine 165.78 97.21

Total assets 15,776.61 12,929.41 Waste/others 5.16 0.62

Segment Liabilities b) Chemicals business (CB)

a) Technical textiles business (TTB) 416.95 337.14 Speciality chemicals 3,100.32 2,389.39

b) Chemicals business (CB) 950.33 710.22 Fluorochemicals, Refrigerant Gases and allied products 1,724.06 893.98

¢) Packaging films business (PFB) 1,449.62 1,117.90 Industrial chemicals 350.65 311.00

d) Others 37.02 32.85 Waste/others . 0.01 0.74
c) Packaging films business (PFB)

Total 2,853.92 2,198.11 Packaging films 4,749.26 3,253.26

Unallocable Liabilities 4,357.33 3,874.88 d) Others

Total Liabilities 7,211.25 6,072.99 Coated fabric, laminated fabric and other ancillary activities 336.61 226.26

12,312.75 8,295.40
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39 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit attributable to equity holders of the group used
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The following table provides the details of the debt and equity at the end of the reporting
periods:

in calculating basic earning per share and diluted
earning per share:

- From continuing operations 1,888.92 1,198.25
- From discontinued operations - (0.31)
- From continuing and discontinued operations 1,888.92 1,197.94

Weighted average number of equity shares of the 29,63,06,696 29,52,63,898
company used in calculating basic earning per share and
diluted earning per share (nos.)

Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value

%10 each *

- From continuing operations (%) 63.75 40.58
- From discontinued operations (%) - (0.01)
- From continuing and discontinued operations (%) 63.75 40.57
Note:

During the current year, Company has issued and allotted 236,980,820 fully paid up Bonus Equity shares of
% 10 each in the ratio of 4:1 (i.e. 4 Bonus Equity shares for every 1 existing equity share of the Company)
to the shareholders who held shares on October 14, 2021 (Record date). Accordingly, basic and diluted
earnings per share has been calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding in
the current and previous year, as adjusted by issuance of bonus shares.

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
40.1 Capital Management

The group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern and provide
reasonable return to the shareholders by maintaining a reasonable balance between debt and equity.
The capital structure of the group consists of net debt (borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents,
deposits accounts with maturity beyond three months upto twelve months and current investments)
and total equity of the group. The group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The group’s management reviews the capital structure of the group on periodic basis. As part of its review,
the management considers the cost of capital and risk associated with each class of capital. The group also
evaluates its gearing measures using Net Debt Equity Ratio to arrive at an appropriate level of debt and
accordingly evolves its capital structure.
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As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Debt and lease liabilities 3,655.19 3,468.58
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 450.48 138.29
Deposits accounts with maturity beyond three months 0.20 135.19
upto twelve months
Current investments 316.74 412.52
Net debt 2,887.77 2,782.58
Total equity 8,565.36 6,856.42
Net debt to equity ratio 0.34 0.41
40.2 Financial instruments by category
Financial assets Level of Notes Carrying value Fair value
hierarchy As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables a 1,792.45 1,274.56  1,792.45  1,274.56
Cash and cash equivalents a 450.48 138.29 450.48 138.29
Bank balances other than above a 8.87 143.71 8.87 143.71
Loans a,b 23.52 21.76 23.52 21.76
Other financial assets a,b 238.02 215.49 238.02 215.49

2,513.34 1,793.81 2,513.34 1,793.81

Measured at Fair value
through profit and loss

Investments in mutual funds and 2 d 316.74 412.52 316.74 412.52
bonds/debentures
Derivative instruments 2 d 3.64 4.39 3.64 4.39

320.38 416.91 320.38 416.91

Measured at Fair
value through Other
comprehensive income

Investments in unquoted 3 d 4.16 4.16 4.16 4.16
equity instruments
Derivative instruments 2 d 124.69 86.55 124.69 86.55

128.85 90.71 128.85 90.71
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Financial liabilities Level of Notes Carrying value Fair value
hierarchy As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings a,c 3,539.35 3,390.96 3,539.35 3,390.96
Trade payables a 2,096.35 1,585.19 2,096.35 1,585.19
Other financial liabilities a 520.20 432.29 520.20 432.29

6,155.90 5,408.44 6,155.90 5,408.44

Measured at Fair value through
other comprehensive income

Derivative instruments 2 d 5.36 0.54 5.36 0.54
5.36 0.54 5.36 0.54

The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate
to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there
is no significant difference between carrying value and fair value.

(c) Fair value of other long-term borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash flows using current
rates (applicable to instruments with similar terms, currency, credit risk and remaining maturities) to
discount the future payouts.

(d) The fair value is determined by using the valuation model/technique with observable/non-observable
inputs and assumptions.

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the Year ended March 31, 2022 and
March 31, 2021.

Level 1:
Quoted prices in the active market: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by
reference to quoted prices in the active market.

Level 2:

Valuation techniques with significant observable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes items measured
using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for such items, either
directly or indirectly. This level of hierarchy consists of over the counter (OTC) derivative contracts, open
ended mutual funds and bonds/debentures.

Level 3:
Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes items measured
using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value is determined
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in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices
from observable current market transactions in the same instruments nor based on available market data.
The main item in this category are unquoted equity instruments.

The fair value of the financial instruments are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an
asset in an orderly transaction between market participants. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

(i) Investments in mutual funds and bonds/debentures: Fair value is determined by reference to quotes
from the financial institutions.

(if) Derivative contracts: The group has entered into various foreign currency contracts and interest rate
swaps contracts to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rate
respectively. These financial exposures are managed in accordance with the group’s risk management
policies and procedures. Fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined using valuation
techniques based on information derived from observable market data, i.e., mark to market values
determined by the authorized dealers banks and forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

(iii) Unquoted equity investments: Fair value is determined based of the recoverable value as per agreement
with the investee.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value Unlisted equity
measurements instruments
As at March 31, 2020 4.16
Purchase of investment -
As at March 31, 2021 4.16
Purchase of investment -
As at March 31, 2022 4.16

Sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs for financial instruments in
Level 3 level of hierarchy is insignificant.

40.3 Financial Risk Management

The group is exposed to various financial risks arising from its underlying operations and finance activities.
The group is primarily exposed to market risk (i.e. interest rate and foreign currency risk) and to credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s Corporate Treasury function plays the role of monitoring financial risk arising
from business operations and financing activities.

Financial risk management within the group is governed by policies and guidelines approved by the senior
management and the Board of Directors. These policies and guidelines cover interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Group policies and guidelines also cover areas such as cash
management, investment of excess funds and the raising of short and long-term debt. Compliance with
the policies and guidelines is managed by the Corporate Treasury function within the group. Review of the
financial risk is done on a monthly basis by the Managing Director and on a quarterly basis by the Board of
Directors. The objective of financial risk management is to contain, where deemed appropriate, exposures
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on net basis to the various types of financial risks mentioned above in order to limit any negative impact on
the group’s results and financial position.

In accordance with its financial risk management policies, the group manages its market risk exposures by
using specific type of financial instruments duly approved by the Board of Directors as and when deemed
appropriate. It is the group’s policy and practice neither to enter into derivative transactions for speculative
purpose, nor for any purpose unrelated to the underlying business. The Board of Directors / Managing
Director reviews and approves policies for managing each of the above risks.

40.3.1 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk includes loans and borrowings, deposits, investments and
derivative financial instruments. The group enters into derivative contracts as approved by the Board to
manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

Foreign Currency Risk Management

Foreign currency risk also known as Exchange Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk in
the group is attributable to group’s operating activities, investing activities and financing activities.

In the operating activities, the group’s exchange rate risk primarily arises when revenue / costs are generated
in a currency that is different from the reporting currency (transaction risk). In compliance with the Board
approved policy, the Group manages the net exposure on a rolling 12 month basis and for exposures
between 12 to 36 months, hedging is done based on specific exposure. The information is monitored by
the Audit committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. This foreign currency risk exposure
of the group are mainly in U.S. Dollar (USD), Euro (EUR), Japanese Yen (JPY) and British pound sterling
(GBP). The group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

The carrying amounts of the group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting periods expressed in Zare as follows:

Assets Liabilities
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
usb 983.61 824.27 2,346.96 1,946.21
EUR 283.94 257.67 846.24 1,124.86
JPY - - 6.33 11.28
GBP 21.56 10.96 0.01 13.12

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The group is mainly exposed to changes in USD, EURO, JPY and GBP exchange rates.

The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the ¥ against the
relevant foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
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monetary items as tabulated above and adjusts their translation at the period end for 1% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit before tax or vice-versa.

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
g strengthens % weakens % strengthens % weakens
by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Impact on profit / (loss) *
usbD 5.02 (5.02) 5.73 (5.73)
EUR 1.87 (1.87) 3.60 (3.60)
JPY 0.06 (0.06) 0.11 (0.11)
GBP (0.22) 0.22 0.02 (0.02)

* Includes sensitivity on long-term foreign currency monetary items on which Para D13 AA of Ind AS 101 has been
applied. Accordingly, the exchange loss/ (gain) arising on long term foreign currency monetary items relating to
acquisition of depreciable assets will be added to/deducted from the cost of such assets/capital work-in-progress and
will be depreciated over the balance useful life of assets.

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
% strengthens Z weakens X strengthens % weakens
by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Impact on equity (Other Comprehensive Income)
usb 8.62 (8.62) 5.49 (5.49)
EUR 3.75 (3.75) 5.08 (5.08)

Foreign exchange derivative and non-derivative financial instruments

The group uses derivative as well as non derivative financial instruments for hedging financial risks that
arise from its commercial business or financing activities. The group’s Corporate Treasury team manages its
foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected to occur within 1 to 36 months for hedges
of forecasted sales, purchases, loans and liabilities and capital expenditures. When a derivative is entered
into for the purpose of being a hedge, the group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the
terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions the derivatives cover the period of
exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of
the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign currency. All identified exposures are
managed as per the policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.

Annual Report 2021-22 | 355



IZIEO CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We always find a better way

Notes to the consolidated financial statements Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2022 for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated) (All amounts in % Crores, unless otherwise stated)
The following table details the foreign currency derivative contracts outstanding at the end of the B. Interest Rate Risk Management
reporting period: Interest rate risk arises from movements in interest rates which could have effects on the group’s net
Maturity income or financial position. Changes in interest rates may cause variations in interest income and expenses
Outstanding No of Deals Contract Value of Up to 12 months More than 12 resultlng from |nterest-l')ear|.ng assets and liabilities. The group’s. exposure .to the I'.ISk gf changes in market
Contracts* Foreign Currency  Nominal Amount*  months Nominal interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
(In Millions) (% Crores) Amount*
(% Crores) The group manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at The group enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed principal
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 amount outstanding at the time of inception of the swap. Out of the total long term borrowings, the amount
USD/INR Sell 362 264 735.50 513.25  2,821.04 2,029.40 3,095.66  1,998.63 of fixed interest loan is ¥ 938.35 Crores and floating interest loan is ¥ 1,562.94 Crores (Previous year: Fixed
forward interest loan ¥ 898.62 Crores and Floating interest loan ¥ 1,531.65 Crores).
EUR/INR sell 1 17 20.00 40.50 - 181.53 202.77 202.77
forward The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
USD/THB Buy - 20 - 18.48 - 129.98 - - portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the group’s profit before
forward tax is affected through the impact on floating rate long term borrowings, as follows:
EUR/USD Buy - 20 - 15.67 - 135.55 - -
forward Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
EUR/THB Buy 6 - 18.00 - 14941 - 9.26 - ? loans interest Foreign % loans interest Foreign
forward rate decreases currency loans rate decreases currency loans
N ) by 0.50 % interest rate by 0.50 % interest rate
Computed using average forward contract rates decreases by decreases by
The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the ¥ against the 0-15 % 0-15 %
Increase in 1.29 1.96 2.85 1.44

relevant foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding forward exchange contracts as
tabulated above and adjusts their translation at the period end for 1% change in forward rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit before tax or vice-versa.

profit before tax by

In case of increase in interest rate by above mentioned percentage, there would be a comparable negative

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021 impact on the profit before tax as mentioned above.
Functional Functional Functional Functional L . .
currency currency currency currency Managing interest rate benchmark reform and associated risks
strengthens by weakens by 1% strengthens by weakens by 1% A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
1% 1% replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative nearly risk-free rates (referred to
Impact on profit / as 'IBOR reform’). The group has exposures to USD-LIBOR and EUR-IBOR on its financial instruments.
(loss) for the year The group has renegotiated all working capital facilities agreements and have moved to new benchmarks,
USD 1.83 (1.83) 1.76 (1.76) wherever IBOR reforms had mandated.
EUR ) . . 0.34 (0.34) As per the IBOR reform regulations, USD LIBOR based contracts entered into on or before
Impact on equity (Other December 31, 2021 are allowed to continue utilising the facility until the maturity date, provided
Comprehensive Income) such date is before June 30, 2023, the group has certain loans which falls under this category and
usD 56.31 (56.31) 36.47 (36.47) accordingly, the management has taken a decision to continue on 1 Month / 3 Months / 6 Months LIBOR.
EUR 3.34 (3.34) 2.05 (2.05)

All the EUR denominated long term loans of the Group are linked to EURIBOR and thus not impacted
by IBOR reforms.
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The group have two loans (USD LIBOR benchmark linked) which are maturing after June 2023 and the Hedging As at March 31, 2022 Year ended As at March 31, 2021 Year ended
management has planned to migrate these loans to Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) benchmark instruments March 31, March 31,
prior to June 2023, along with IRS contract, if any. The management does not envisage any significant 2022 2021
impact on the consolidated financial statements due to the migration. Nominal  Carrying Line item Change in Nominal Carrying Line item Change in
amount amount where the the value of amount amount where the the value of
Interest Rate Swap Contracts ® Assets / hedging the hedging (% Assets / hedging the hedging
Under interest rate swap (IRS) contracts, the group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and Crores) (liabilities) instrumentis instrument Crores) (liabilities) instrumentis  instrument
floating rate interest amounts calculated on the agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enables N lncucee recognlsed BCEi e e recogmsed
9 9 princip in OCI in OCI
the group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates. (% Crores) ( Crores)
Foreign 1,236.86  (1,236.86) Non-current/ 8.20 1,055.91  (1,055.91) Non-current (1.27)
The following table details the IRS contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period: currency current borrowing
Maturity denominated borrowings
Outstanding No of Deals Contract Value of Up to 12 months  More than 12 months loans ) ) . .
Contracts Foreign Currency  Nominal Amount*  Nominal Amount* 3.52 Other financial 2,51 1.01 Other financial 101
(In Millions) (% Crores) (Z Crores) assets (current assets (current
As at As at As at As at As at As at As at As at Interest and non - and non -
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, rate swap 153.55 current) 227.17 current)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 contacts : l‘?thff_r_ﬁ”anc'a' 0.54 (0.54) I‘?tg,f,r,ﬁ”anc'a' 1.88
IRS Contracts* 4 4 2028 3105 9076 8549 6279 14168 (';E’r'r':rftsan ; faplites (current
non - current) current)

Each of the above trades are in the nature of cash flow hedges and are effective hedges. The mark
to market on these trades is therefore routed through Cash flow Hedge Reserve. The interest rate
swap and the interest payments on the loan are paid simultaneously and are charged to statement of
profit and loss.

Fair Value hedges

The amounts at the reporting date relating to the item designed as hedge items are as follows:

_ ) ) L Hedging As at March 31, 2022 Year ended As at March 31, 2021 Year ended

* Sensitivity on the above IRS contracts in respect of interest rate exposure is insignificant instruments March 31, March 31,
i 2022 2021

Hedge accounting Nominal  Carrying Lineitem Change in Nominal Carrying Lineitem Changein
Cash flow hedges amount amount where the the value of amount amount where the the value of
The amounts at the reporting date relating to the item designed as hedge items are as follows: ® Assets/ hedging the hedging (3 Assets | hedging the hedging

Crores) (liabilities) instrument instrument

Crores) (liabilities) instrumentis instrument

Hedgin As at March 31, 2022 Year ended As at March 31, 2021 Year ended
instlgumgents ! March 31, ! March 31, (% Crores) is included recogni_sed in (% Crores) included recognisgd
2022 2021 consolidated in
. " — - - - — A statement of consolidated
Nominal  Carrying Line item Change in Nominal Carrying Line item Change in Profit s
amount amount where the the value of amount amount where the the value of and loss of Profit and
® Assets / hedging the hedging ® Assets / hedging the hedging loss
Crores) (liabilities) instrumentis instrument Crores) (liabilities) instrument is instrument (% Crores)
(X Crores) included ’e°°?:'(§2‘: (X Crores) included rec°?:'82°1' Foreign 186.51 3.64 Other (075) 215.21 439  Other financial 6.89
exchange financial assets / liabilities
— (OS] — Q) contracts assets / (Current and Non
121.17 Other financial 35.63 85.54 Other financial 151.16 liabilities - current)
assets (current assets (current (current
Forei and non - and non - and non -
eg;ﬁ'g: o 6,091.63 current) 4,462.65 current) current)
g (5.36) Other financial (5.36) - Other financial -
contracts — R~
liabilities liabilities (current
(current and and non -
non - current) current)
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Movement of cash flow hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve:

Particulars Cash flow hedging Cost of hedging reserve
reserve

As at As at As at As at

March 31, March 31, March31, March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021

Opening Balance 7.53 (78.56) 3.13 -

Changes in the spot element of the forward (3.12) 8.59 - -

contracts which is designated as hedging
instruments for time period related hedge

Changes in the forward element of the forward - - 19.31 7.74
contracts where changes in spot element of

forward contract is designated as hedging

instruments for time period related hedges

Changes in fair value of forward contracts 28.77 130.71 - -
designated as hedging instruments

Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps 3.05 2.89 - -
Amount reclassified to Profit or Loss (Foreign 16.54 3.12 (21.48) (4.28)
exchange (gain) / loss)

Amount arising from remeasurement of (5.25) (12.98) - -
financial liability

Taxes related to above (13.03) (46.24) (0.45) (0.33)
Closing Balance 34.49 7.53 0.51 3.13

40.3.2 Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables, loans and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the group’s treasury department
in accordance with the group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with counterparties who
meet the parameters specified in Investment Policy of the groups . The investment policy is reviewed by the
group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis and if required, the same may be updated during the year.
The investment policy specifies the limits of investment in various categories of products so as the minimize
the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss due to counterparty’s potential failure.

Expected credit loss on financial assets:

To manage credit risk for trade receivables, the group establishes credit approvals and credit limits,
periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial conditions,
economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and aging of such receivables.

With regard to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management
believes these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the
parties, from which these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations
and where the risk of default is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been
provided on these financial assets other than as detailed below.
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Loss allowance for the following financial assets have been recognised by the Group:

Note No. As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Loans - current 8 2.74 2.74
Trade receivables 13 3.45 5.03
6.19 7.77

Movement of loss allowance:

Loans (current and Trade receivables
non current)

As at March 31, 2020 2.74 3.61
Provided during the year 0.24 11.70
Reversed / utilised during the year (0.24) (10.28)
As at March 31, 2021 2.74 5.03
Provided during the year 0.17 0.78
Reversed / utilised during the year (0.17) (2.35)
As at March 31, 2022 2.74 3.45

Other than financial assets mentioned above, none of the group’s financial assets are impaired, as there are
no indications that defaults in payments obligation would occur.

40.3.3 Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of financial facilities available to the group to meet its financial
obligations. The group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of money market instruments, bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures and other types
of facilities. The liquidity management is governed by the Board approved liquidity management policy.
Any deviation from the policy has to be approved by the Treasury Management comprising of Managing
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Treasury Head. The group assesses the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt, guarantee given and funding of its capital expenditure according to needs
of the future. The group manages its liquidity by holding appropriate volumes of liquid assets which are
available for its disposal on T +1 basis and by maintaining open credit lines with banks / financial institutions.

The table below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity profiles based on their
contractual maturities:

Less than More than 1 year More than Total
1 year and upto 5 years 5 years
As at March 31, 2022
Borrowings* 1,819.30 1,783.41 - 3,602.71
Lease Liabilities** 28.63 84.50 59.52 172.65
Trade payables 2,096.35 - - 2,096.35
Other financial liabilities 371.70 153.86 - 525.56
4,315.98 2,021.77 59.52 6,397.27
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Less than More than 1 year More than Total
1 year and upto 5 years 5 years
As at March 31, 2021
Borrowings* 1,477.41 1,806.11 214.67 3,498.19
Lease Liabilities** 19.30 53.85 53.68 126.83
Trade payables 1,585.19 - - 1,585.19
Other financial liabilities 432.29 0.54 - 432.83
3,514.19 1,860.50 268.35 5,643.04

* including future cash outflow towards estimated interest on non -current borrowings.
** including future cash outflow towards estimated interest on lease liabilities.

41 Contract balances
The following table provides information about contract liabilities from contracts with customers

42

Contract liability Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 18.40 12.68
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability (18.40) (12.68)
balance at the beginning of the period
Increase due to cash received, excluding the amount recognised 28.32 18.40
as revenue during the period
28.32 18.40

Non - current assets held for sale and Discontinued operation
A Technical Textiles Business of SRF Industries(Thailand) Limited
(@) Description

(b)

SRF Industries(Thailand) Limited closed its Technical Textiles Business operations located at Rayong,
Thailand w.e.f. October 21, 2019. The business was reported as part of Technical Textiles Business
as per requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments” in the consolidated financial statements.
The financial information of the said business have been classified as Discontinued Operations as
per requirements of INDAS 105 - “Non -current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”.
The particulars of said discontinued operations are as under:

Financial performance and cash flow information

S.no. Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Sale of Products - -

(b) Other operating Revenues - 2.26
(c) Total revenue from operations {I(a)+I(b)} - 2.26
(d) Other income - 6.22
(e) Total income {I(c)+I(d)} - 8.48
(f) Total expenses excluding point no.(g) - 11.21
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S.no. Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(g) Impact on account of fair value measurement loss / -
(gain) on assets/liabilities

(h) Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinued - (2.73)
operations {I(e)-I(f)-1(g)}
(i) Taxexpense/(gain)related to discontinued operations (2.42)
1I Net Profit / (loss) after tax from discontinued - (0.31)
operations {1(h)-I(i)}
III Net cash generated from operating activities - (1.64)
v Net cash generated from investing activities - 17.91
Vv Net cash used in financing activities - (0.06)
B. Pursuant to requirements of Ind AS 105, the amounts in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(and related notes) for the previous year have been presented for continuing operations, as applicable
unless otherwise stated.
C. Assets classified as held for sale
(@) Description:
During the current year, the management has decided to dispose off inoperative assets related to
Industrial Yarn Unit. Accordingly, these assets have been classified as assets held for sale in terms
of Ind AS 105- “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” and recognised at
their estimated fair value. Till previous year, these assets were reported under “Technical textiles
business segment” in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments” in the
consolidated financial statements.
(b) Assets classified as held for sale:
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Property plant and equipment 3.00 -
(c) Loss recognised on:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(i) Impairment of goodwill 0.62 -
(i) Fair value of assets classified as held for sale 5.75 -
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43 Leases Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
The group leases various types of assets including land, buildings and Plant & Machinery. Information about March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
leases for which the group is a lessee is presented below. Interest on lease liabilities 8.69 6.49
Right-of-use assets Land * Buildings Plant & Total Depreciation expense 24.43 18.06

equipment Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value 30.36 17.92
Cost assets (Refer note 30)
Balances at March 31, 2020 148.04 44.98 50.63 243.65
Additions/adjustments 3.25 2.13 1.86 7.24
. itions/adju Amounts recognised in Cash Flow Statement Year ended Year ended
Disposals - (0.86) (2.60) (3.46) March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at March 31,2021 151.29 46.25 49.89 247.43 Total cash outflow for leases 25.68 20.19
Additions/adjustments 4.88 (0.45) 58.59 63.02
Disposals - - (8.20) (8.20) 44 Group Information
Balance at March 31,2022 156.17 45.80 100.28 302.25 Name Principal activities Country of % equity interest
Accumulated depreciation incorporation March 31, March 31,
Balances at March 31, 2020 0.87 6.76 8.44 16.07 2022 2021
Depreciation expenses 1.68 7.07 9.31 18.06 SRF Holiday Home Limited Developmgnt and Ieasg India 100% 100%
Disposals B (0.86) (2.60) (3.46) of Indu'strlal,. commercial
and residential complexes
Balances at March 31, 2021 2.55 12.97 15.15 30.67 L .
— SRF Altech Limited Manufacture of India 100% —
Dfepreaatlon expenses 1.74 6.59 16.10 24.43 Aluminium films
Disposals - - (8.20) (8.20) SRF Employees Welfare Implementation and India * *
Balance at March 31,2022 4.29 19.56 23.05 46.90 Trust (Controlled Trust) operationalisation of
long term incentive
Net block plans of the Company
Balances at March 31, 2021 148.74 33.28 34.74 216.76 SRF Global BV Investment company Netherlands 100% 100%
Balances at March 31, 2022 151.88 26.24 77.23 255.35 SRF Flexipak (South Africa) Manufacture of BOPP and Republic 100% 100%
(Pty) Limited (subsidiary metallized BOPP films of South Africa
* The execution of lease deed of land in respect of 1,165,437 square meters of leasehold land already alloted (out of SRF Global BV)
of a total of 1,181,776 square meters) to the Company is pending. As a process agreed with Gujarat Industrial o o 0
Development Corporation (GIDC), the same will be executed once the entire / substantial portion of the above piece SRF EUROPE Kft (subsidiary Manufacture of Hungary 100% 100%
of land is allotted / handed over to the Company. of SRF Global BV) Polyester film and
metallized Polyester film
Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet As at As at SRF Industries (Thailand) Manufacture of Tyre Thailand 100% 100%
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Limited (subsidiary cord fabric, Polyester
Current 20.66 13.80 of SRF Global BV) film and metallized
Non-current 95.18 63.83 Polyester film & trading
of chemical products
The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities during the year ranges from 6.40% to SRF Industex Belting Trading of Republic 100% 100%
7.00% (Previous year: 6.50% to 8.00%) (Pty) Limited (subsidiary packagmg films and of South Africa
of SRF Global BV) chemical products

* By virtue of management control.
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45

46

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of General Instructions for
preparation of consolidated financial statements to the Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013

Name of the entity in

Net Assets, i.e., total Share in profit or loss Share in other Share in total

the Group assets minus total comprehensive income  comprehensive income
liabilities
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of total Amount
consolidated (Z consolidated (Z Crores) consolidated (  consolidated ®
net assets  Crores) Share in other Crores) comprehensive Crores)
profit or loss comprehensive income
income
I Parent - SRF 89% 7,624.81 80%  1,507.01 112% 23.25 80% 1,530.26
Limited
II  Subsidiaries:
A Indian
1 SRF Holiday Home - 3.75 - 0.01 - - - 0.01
Limited
2 SRF Altech Limited - 2.72 - (2.28) (2.28)
3 SRF Employees - 0.05 - (0.01) - - - (0.01)
Welfare Trust
(Controlled Trust)
B. Foreign
1 SRF Global BV 12%  1,036.38 20% 383.42 (12)% (2.53) 20% 380.89
(Consolidated)
Adjustments arising (1)%  (102.35) - 0.77 - - - 0.77
out of consolidation
Total 100% 8,565.36 100% 1,888.92 100% 20.72 100% 1,909.64
Non-controlling Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Interests in all
subsidiaries

Business Combinations

Effective March 04, 2022, one of subsidiaries (SRF Industex Belting (Pty) Limited) in the group acquired a
business from an external party (Supratov Investments CC). The following assets were recognised as at the
date of acquisition on the basis of provisional purchase price allocation.

Assets acquired Amount
Inventories 15.71
Intangible assets (Customer Contracts) 9.79
Purchase Price 25.50

Based on the current available information, the management has identified the above mentioned assets
and carried out initial account as per Ind AS 103, as the business has been acquired closer to year-end.
The group is in the process of identifying additional intangibles, if any, and completing the registration
process of property, plant and equipment (building). Any further adjustments, would be recognised once
the accounting for business combination is complete.
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47
(a)

(b)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

The details of research and development expenditure of ¥116.99 crores (Previous Year - ¥ 110.50 crores)

included in these financials statements are as under:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital expenditure 8.49 13.46
Revenue expenditure 108.50 97.04
116.99 110.50
The details of revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is as below:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cost of material consumed 1.68 2.73
Salaries and wages, including Bonus 49.11 42.97
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.92 2.61
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 3.37 2.72
Stores and spares consumed 4.94 6.11
Power and fuel 7.94 4.84
Rent 0.26 -
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 10.63 8.32
- Others 0.85 0.58
Insurance 1.02 0.96
Rates and taxes 0.06 0.07
Travelling and conveyance 0.51 0.16
Legal and professional charges 4.12 3.58
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16.65 18.33
Interest cost 0.05 0.28
Miscellaneous expenses 4.39 2.78
108.50 97.04
MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(i) (a) Remuneration to Chairman / Managing
Director / Deputy Managing Director /
Whole time Director

Salary and contribution to provident and other funds 16.39 12.04
Value of perquisites 2.58 2.36
Commission 18.00 12.00
SUB-TOTAL 36.97 26.40
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(c)

(d)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(b) Remuneration to Non Executive Directors

Commission 0.90 0.84
Directors sitting fees 0.29 0.27
Other fees 0.06 0.14
SUB-TOTAL 1.25 1.25
TOTAL 38.22 27.65

The Group has elected to continue the policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising
from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items as described in Para D13 AA of Ind AS
101. Accordingly, exchange loss/ (gain) arising on all long term monetary items financed or re-financed
on or before March 31, 2016 relating to acquisition of following depreciable assets are added to/ adjusted
from the cost of such assets/ capital work in progress and will be depreciated over the balance useful life
of such assets.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Exchange loss/ (gain) added/ (adjusted)

Property, plant and equipment

- Roads 0.11 (0.52)
- Buildings 1.52 (6.98)
- Plant and equipment 13.60 (31.59)
- Furniture and fixtures 0.04 (0.14)
- Office equipment 0.01 (0.01)

15.28 (39.24)

The cumulative exchange loss/ (gain) added/ (adjusted) and remaining unamortised as at March 31, 2022
is ¥ 258.34 Crores (Previous year: ¥ 259.14 Crores).

Disclosure on corporate social responsibility expense:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company 18.61 12.88

during the year

(i) Amount of expenditure incurred 19.06* 10.18
(i) Shortfall at the end of the year - 2.7%*
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall - -
(v) Reason of shortfall - Pertains to

ongoing projects
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(e)

()

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

School education, disaster management,
environmental projects, Covid 19 Relief,
Vocational skill and livelihoods projects
and promotion of art and cultural projects
(vii) Details of related party transactions 21.38 9.18

(viii) Provision made with respect to a liability incurred by - -
entering into a contractual obligation

(vi) Nature of CSR activities

** Consequent to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, the unspent amount
was subsequently deposited in a “Unspent CSR Account” and also utilised during the year ended March 31, 2022.

* This includes % 18.68 crores pertaining to current year and ¥ 0.37 crores pertaining to previous year. In accordance
with the above amended rules, the Company had taken credit for ¥ 0.37 crores for excess CSR expenditure incurred
during financial year 2019-20 and adjusted the same towards the CSR obligation for financial year 2020-21. However,
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through its circular dated August 25, 2021, clarified that the companies
cannot set off excess CSR amount spent prior to financial year 2020-21. Accordingly, an amount of ¥ 0.37 crore has
been transferred to one of the specified funds prescribed under Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 before
September 30, 2021.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents
as required by transfer pricing legislation under section 92D for its international transactions as well as
specified domestic transactions. Based on the transfer pricing regulations/ policy, the transfer pricing study
for the year ended March 31, 2022 is to be conducted on or before due date of the filing of return and the
Company will further update above information and records based on the same and expects these to be in
existence latest by that date. Management believes that all the above transactions are at arm’s length price
and the aforesaid legislations will not have impact on the financial statement, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and provision for taxation.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(i) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of subsidiaries
incorporated in India, to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(i) There are no funds which have been received by the Holding Company or any of subsidiaries
incorporated in India, from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall:

a) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(iii) The group does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off, except the following:

Name of the struck off Nature of Balance Balance Relationship

company transactions outstanding as outstanding as with the struck
with struck off at March 31, at March 31, off company, if
company 2022 2021 any

Jyotsna Engineers & Receivables A A Vendor

Consultants Private

Limited

Krishna Freeze Private  Payables 0.01 0.01 Customer

Limited

Perfect Refcon & Tools ~ Payables 0.01 0.01 Customer

Private Limited

A Amount in absolute ¥ 2,000 (Previous year: ¥ 2,000)

(iv) The group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the group for holding any Benami property.

(v) The group is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(vi) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(vii) The group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viii) The group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(g) The figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to comply with amendments in
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no.
101248W / W-100022

Kaushal Kishore
Partner

Membership No.: 090075
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 27, 2022
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Chairman and Joint Managing Director
Managing Director DIN - 00008557

DIN - 00671567 Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram Date: May 09, 2022
Date: May 09, 2022

Rahul Jain Bharti Gupta Ramola Rajat Lakhanpal
President & CFO Director Vice President
Place: Gurugram DIN - 00356188 (Corporate Compliance)
Date: May 09, 2022 Place: Gurugram and Company Secretary
Date: May 09, 2022 Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2022

Statement pursuant to first proviso to sub section(3) of section 129 of Companies Act
2013,read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in prescribed form AOC-1

relating to subsidiaries/associates companies/joint ventures

A Statement showing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries
Indian Subsidiaries

S. Name of the subsidiary SRF Holiday Home Limited SRF Altech Limited
No. (subsidiary of SRF Limited) (subsidiary of SRF Limited)
(% Crores) (% Crores)
(@) Reporting Period 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022
(b) Date since when subsidiary was 30.01.2008 15.03.2022
acquired/formed
(c) Reporting Currency INR INR
(d) Exchange Rate - -
(e) Share Capital 4.00 5.00
(f)  Reserves and Surplus (0.25) (2.28)
(g) Total Assets 3.78 2.72
(h) Total Liabilities 0.02 0.01
(i)  Investment - -
()  Turnover - -
(k)  Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 0.01 (2.76)
()  Tax expense / (income) - (0.47)
(m) Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 0.01 (2.28)
(n) Proposed Dividend - -
(0) % of shareholding 100% 100%
S. Name of the subsidiary SRF Global BV# SRF Flexipak (South Africa)
No. (Pty) Limited*
(subsidiary of SRF Limited) (subsidiary of SRF Global BV)
UsD % Crores Rand % Crores
(@) Reporting Period 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022
(b) Date since when subsidiary 20.10.2008 26.10.2011
was acquired/formed
(c) Reporting Currency usb T Crores Rand X Crores
(d) Exchange Rate 75.73 5.22
(e) Share Capital 1,83,15,664 138.70 100 0.00
(f)  Reserves and Surplus (2,42,53,897) (183.67) 54,92,59,311 286.71
(g) Total Assets 8,00,89,962 606.52 93,01,73,795 485.55
(h) Total Liabilities 8,60,28,195 651.49 38,09,14,384 198.84
(i)  Investment * * - -
()  Turnover - - 1,21,82,56,227 635.93
(k)  Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (3,47,088) (2.63) 31,51,60,169 164.51
()  Tax expense / (income) - - 8,60,57,017 44.92
(m) Profit/(Loss) After Taxation (3,47,088) (2.63) 22,91,03,152 119.59
(n) Proposed Dividend - - - -
(0) % of shareholding 100% 100%

* Investment in subsidiary USD 1,42,79,669 (Equivalent to ¥ 108.14 crores)
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S. Name of the subsidiary SRF Industries (Thailand) SRF Industex Belting (Pty)

No. Limited# Limited#
(subsidiary of SRF Global BV) (subsidiary of SRF Global BV)

THB % Crores Rand % Crores
(@) Reporting Period 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022
(b) Date since when subsidiary 08.09.2008 13.06.2008
was acquired/formed

(c)  Reporting Currency THB T Crores Rand % Crores

(d) Exchange Rate 2.28 5.22

(e) Share Capital 20,00,00,300 45.60 1,33,20,202 6.95

(f)  Reserves and Surplus 3,10,05,96,284 706.94  (4,66,60,708) (24.36)

(g) Total Assets 8,04,89,03,897 1,835.15 10,66,76,650 55.69

(h)  Total Liabilities 4,74,83,07,313 1,082.61 14,00,17,156 73.09

(i)  Investment - - - -

(G)  Turnover 6,01,36,39,796 1,371.11 2,21,61,161 11.57

(k)  Profit/(Loss) Before 1,01,37,84,473 231.14 29,57,686 1.54

Taxation

()  Tax expense / (income) 2,16,43,990 4.93 - -

(m) Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 99,21,40,483 226.21 29,57,686 1.54

(n)  Proposed Dividend - - - -

(0) % of shareholding 100% 100%

S. Name of the subsidiary SRF Europe Kft#

No. (subsidiary of SRF Global BV)

EURO % Crores

(@)  Reporting Period 1 April 2021 to 31 March, 2022

(b) Date since when subsidiary was acquired/formed 25.04.2018

(c)  Reporting Currency EURO % Crores

(d) Exchange Rate 84.07

(e) Share Capital 10,10,000 8.49

(f)  Reserves and Surplus 48,57,005 40.83

(g) Total Assets 11,73,56,051 986.61

(h)  Total Liabilities(external liabilities) 11,14,89,046 937.29

() Investment - -

() Turnover 7,24,60,536 609.18

(k)  Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 50,70,087 42.62

0] Tax expense / (income) 69,915 0.59

(m)  Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 50,00,172 42.04

(n)  Proposed Dividend - -

(0) % of shareholding 100%

# The financial statements of these foreign subsidiaries have been converted into Indian Rupees on the basis of following
exchange rates:

(0

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

1USD =% 75.73
1 Baht = 2.28
1 Rand =% 5.22

1 Euro = % 84.07
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joint ventures

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of associates companies/

Name of Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Malanpur Captive

Vaayu Renewable

# Power Ltd. Energy(Tapti) Pvt. Ltd.
Latest audited Balance Sheet date 31.03.2021 31.03.2021
Share of Associate Companies held by the Company 4.22 0.05
on the year end

Date on which the Associate was associated or acquired 09.01.2007 29.05.2013
Shares of associate held by the company on the

year end

Number of shares: 42,21,535 50,000
Amount of investment in Associate Companies 4.22 0.05
Extent of holding (%) 22.60% 26.32%

Description of how there is significant influence

Due to control of at

least 20% of total share
capital as envisaged

in Sec. 2(6) of the

Companies Act ,2013

Reason why the associate company is not consolidated
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
Audited Balance Sheet

Profit & loss for the year

(i) Considered in Consolidation

(ii) Not considered in Consolidation

X

(7.46)

Nil
(0.35)

Due to control of at
least 20% of total share
capital as envisaged

in Sec. 2(6) of the
Companies Act ,2013

X

11.60

Nil
(0.70)

# The company has no joint venture

* Investment in both these captive power companies are held by the company as a consumer in accordance
with the requirements of the Electricity Act, 2005. The company does not exercise significant influence
as defined under IND AS over these companies and therefore their annual accounts are not consolidated

with the annual accounts of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashish Bharat Ram

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN - 00671567

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

Kartik Bharat Ram
Joint Managing Director
DIN - 00008557

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022

Rahul Jain
President & CFO
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 09, 2022

Rajat Lakhanpal

Vice President (Corporate Compliance) and
Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022
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Bharti Gupta Ramola
Director

DIN - 00356188

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 09, 2022
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